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603-271-5034 1-800-852-3345 Ext. 5034

Fax:603-271-5166 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964
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April 2, 2020

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord. New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Long Term Supports and
Services, to enter into a Retroactive amendment to an existing contract and exercise a renewal option
with Southeastern Regional Educational Service Center (Vendor #154866-B001), 165 South River Road,
Suite F,- Bedford, NH 03110, to continue providing Feeding and Swallowing Consultation Services for
Children with Special Health Care Needs by increasing the price limitation by $306,250 from $368,230
to $674,480 and by extending the completion date frorn March 31, 2020 to June 30, 2021, effective upon
Governor and Executive Council approval. 25% Federal Funds, 75% General Funds.

The agreement was originally approved by the Governor and Executive Council on March 21.
2018 (Item #7B).

Funds are available in the following account for State Fiscal Years 2020 and 2021, upon the
availability and continued appropriation of funds in the future operating budget, with authority to adjust
amounts within the price limitation and adjust encumbrances between state fiscal years through the
Budget Office, if needed and justified.

05-095-093-930010-51910000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SVS, HHS: DEVELOPMENTAL SVCS DIV, DIV OF DEVELOPMENTAL SVCS, SPECIAL MEDICAL
SERVICES.

State

Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account
Class Title Job Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased) Amount
Revised

Modified

Budget

2018 562-500912
CSHCN

Assistance
93001000 $46,029 $0 $46,029

2019 562-500912
CSHCN

Assistance
93001000 $184,115 $0 $184,115

2020 562-500912
CSHCN

Assistance
93001000 $138,086 $61,250 $199,336

2021 562-500912
CSHCN

Assistance
93001000 $0 $245,000 $245,000

Total $368,230 $306,250 $674,480

EXPLANATION

This request is Retroactive because this item was previously submitted and the Department was
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requested to reassess the contract duration due to the COVID-19 Emergecy. The Department is
resubmitting with shorter contract duration of fifteen (15) months. The purpose of this request is to
continue to address the needs of children and. youth with special healthcare needs who have conditions
that require specialty feeding-and swallowing consultation services.

Approximately 1,250 individuals will be served from March 31, 2020 through June 30, 2021.

The original agreement, included language in Exhibit C-1 Revisions to General Provisions that
allows the Department to renew the contract for up to twenty-four (24) months, subject to the continued
availability of funding, satisfactory performance of service, parties' written authorization and approval
from the Governor and Executive Council. The Department is in agreement with renewing services for
fifteen (15) months of the twenty-four {24} at this time.

The Feeding and Swallowing program provides home and community assessments, intervention
recommendations, and ongoing monitoring of the growth and health status of children. The program also
provides competency training in pediatric feeding and swallowing disorders to families and community-
based personnel serving children, including but not limited to. Part C Early Intervention programs, child
care providers and school-based personnel.

Southeastern Regional Educational Service Center has demonstrated success through its
network of seven (7) feeding and swallowing providers who served 1,124 children in all ten (10) New
Hampshire bounties. Through this network of specialists, 1.681 visits were conducted and 367 swallow
studies were completed. Biennial client-family satisfaction surveys for SPY 2018 indicated that 90% of
families were satisfied with the services.

Southeastern Regional Educational Service Center reports that the number of children in need of
services continues to increase, as does the acuity of their conditions and the social complexity of their
families: often as result of substance misuse. This amendment will provide funding to support this growing
need for specialty feeding and swallowing consultation.

The Department will monitor the effectiveness of contract' services through the following
performance measures:

•  90% of parents or guardians who respond to a Family Satisfaction Survey report satisfaction.

•  100% of CYSHCN served will have individual treatment plans developed.

•  100% of feeding and swallowing services provided shall be billed to private insurance
company, a managed care organization (MCG), or New Hampshire Medicaid, as is applicable.

•  100% of client visit records shall include documentation of progress towards outcome
measures.

•  100% of swallow studies conducted will be analyzed and consultation to families of CYSHSN
will be provided.

•  100% of all CYSHSN served will be provided necessary medical management and
accommodations that allow for safe eating and drinking at home, day care, and school.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not authorize this request, families and careglvers of
up to 1,340 children may not receive consultations and follow up visits that assist families to effectively
manage their children's feeding and swallowing concerns.

Area served: Statewide

Source of Funds: 25% Federal Funds from United States Department of Health and Human
Services, Maternal and Child Health Services Title V Block Grant and 75% General Funds. CFDA
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#93.994 / FAIN #B09SM010035. 75% General Funds.

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available. General Funds will not be
requested^to support this program.

Respectfully submitted.

Lori A. Shibinette

Commissioner

The Department of Health and Human Scroitcs' Mission is to join communities atid families
in prouiding opportunities for citieens to achieve health and independence.



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Feeding and Swallowing Network for
Children and Youth with Special Health Care Needs

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #1 to the Feeding and Swallowing Network for
Children and Youth with Special Health Care Needs Contract

This V* Amendment to the Feeding and Swallowing Network for Children and Youth with Special Health
Care needs contract {hereinafter referred to as "Amendment #1") is by and between the State of New
Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services (hereinafter referred to as the "State" or
"Department") and Southeastern Regional Educational Service Center, inc., (hereinafter referred to as
"the Contractor"), a nonprofit with a place of business at 165 South River Road, Suite F, Bedford, NH
03110.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on March 21, 2018, (item #78), the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms
and conditions specified in the Contract and in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, the State and the Contractor have agreed to make changes to the scope of work, payment
schedules or terms and conditions of the contract; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 18, and Exhibit C-1, Revisions to
General Provisions, Paragraph 3, the Contract may be amended upon written agreement of the parties
and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, increase the price limitation, and
modify the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services; and

WHEREAS, ail terms and conditions of the Contract not Inconsistent with this Amendment #1 remain in
full force and effect; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows;

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:

June 30. 2021.

2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$674,480.

3. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.9, Contracting Officer for State Agency, to read:

Nathan D. White, Director.

4. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.10, State Agency Telephone Number, to read:

603-271-9631.

5. Modify Exhibit A, Scope of Services, Section 2, Subsection 2.1, Paragraph 2.1.3, to read:

2.1.3. Collaborates with other agencies.

6. Modify Exhibit A, Scope of Services, Section 2, Subsection 2.1, Paragraph 2.1.5, to read:

2.1.5. Maintains the FSN network, including, but not limited to:

2.1.5.1. Pediatric feeding and swallowing providers

2.1.5.2. Program Manager.

2.1.5.3. Program Assistant.

Southeastern Regional Educational
Service Center, Inc. Amendment #1 Contractor Initials _1.!
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Feeding and Swallowing Network for
Children and Youth with Special Health Care Needs

7. Modify Exhibit A, Scope of Services, Section 2, Subsection 2.8, to read;

2.8. The Contractor shall provide services at locations throughout the State, which shall include,

but are not limited to:

2.8.1. Whole Village Family Resource Center in Plymouth;

2.8.2. Family Resource Center in Laconia;

2.8.3. Androscoggin Valley Hospital in Berlin;

2.8.4. G'orham Learning Center in Gorham;

2.8.5. Cedarcrest Center in Keene;

2.8.6. Richie McFarland Children's Center in Stratham; and

2.8.7. Community Partners of Strafford County in Rochester.

8. Modify Exhibit A, Scope of Services, Section 2, by adding Subsection 2.9, to read:

2.9 The Contractor shall ensure that consultation services for CYSHCN are community-based
and shall include, but are not limited to:

2.9.1 Assessment and planning for safe feeding plans;

2.9.2 Management of feeding tubes; and

2.9.3 Aspiration management.

9. Modify Exhibit A, Scope of Services, Section 4, Reporting, Subsection 4.2 by adding Paragraph
4.2.7, to read:

4.2.7. A corrective action plan for any performance measures identified in Section 7 that

was not achieved.

10. Modify Exhibit A, Scope of Services, Section 4, Reporting, Subsection 4.3, to read:

4.3. The Contractor shall ensure that all applicable data is entered into the SMS Database

system with ten (10) days of the CYSHCN, family, or guardian's contact with FSS. Additional

Information may be requested by the Department at any time during the contract period.

11. Modify Exhibit A, Scope of Services, Section 5, Billing and Sustainability, to read:

5. Billing and Sustainability

5.1. The Contractor shall coordinate a system integrating public and private funding to
sustain the availability of specialized feeding and swallowing services to CYSHCN
throughout the State.

5.2. Develop and maintain relationships with third-party insurance payers and public health
funders.

5.3. Develop a system to negotiate and secure reimbursements for feeding and swallowing
services that shall include, but not be limited to:

5.3.1. Serve as the paymaster for the established network of community-based
providers' fee-for-servlce and training activities; and

5.3.2. Investigate, correct and resubmit denied claims as appropriate.

Southeastern Regional Educational
Service Center, Inc. Amendment #1 Contractor Initials

RFP-2020-BDAS-08-FEED-A01 Page 2 of 6 Date 4/2/20



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Feeding and Swallowing Network for
Children and Youth with Special Health Care Needs

12. Modify Exhibit A, Scope of Services, Section 7, Performance Measures, to read:

7. Performance Measures

7.1. The Contractor shall ensure the following performance indicators are annually
achieved and or monitored monthly to measure the effectiveness of the contract:

7.1.1. Ninety (90) percent of parents or guardians who respond to a bi-annual
Department distributed Family Satisfaction Survey must report satisfaction
with FSN services.

7.1.2. 100% of CYSHCN served will have individual treatment plans developed.

7.1.3. 100% of feeding and swallowing services provided shall be billed to private
insurance company, a managed care organization (MOO), or New
Hampshire Medicaid, as is applicable.

7.1.4. 100% of client visit records shall include documentation of progress towards
outcome measures.

7.1.5. 100% of swallow studies conducted will be analyzed and consultation to
families of CYSHSN will be provided as appropriate.

7.1.6. 100% of all CYSHSN served will be provided necessary medical
management and accommodations that allow for safe eating and drinking at
home, day care, and school.

'  13. Modify Exhibit A, Scope of Services, Section 8. Deliverables, to read:

8. Deliverables

8.1. A network of feeding and swallowing providers numbering no less than six (6) will
visit clients in all ten (10) New Hampshire counties.

8.2. A minimum of 1,100 visits will be conducted by feeding and swallowing providers
during each twelve (12) month period of the contract.

8.3. A minimum of 100 swallow studies will be completed.

14. Modify Exhibit B, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment Section 4, Subsection 4.4, to
read:

4. In lieu of hard copies, all invoices may be assigned an electronic signature and emailed to
Erika.Downie@dhhs.nh.gov, or invoices may be mailed to:

Family Centered Services Program Specialist
Department of Health and Human Services
Division of Long Term Supports and Services
129 Pleasant Street, Thayer Building
Concord, NH 03301

15. Modify Exhibit B, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment by adding Section 7, to read:
7. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees that funding under

this agreement may be withheld, in whole or in part, in the event of non-compliance with
any Federal or State law, rule or regulation applicable to the services provided, or if the

Southeastern Regional Educational
Sen/ice Center, Inc. ' Amendment #1 Contractor Initials a / ^
RFP-2020-BDAS-08-FEED-A01 Page 3 of 6 pate 4/2/20



New Hampshire Departrhent of Health and Human Services
Feeding and Swallowing Network for
Children and Youth with Special Health Care Needs

said services or products have not been satisfactorily completed in accordance with the
terms and conditions of this agreement.

16. Add Exhibit B-4 Amendment #1 through Exhibit B-5 Amendment #1.

Southeastern Regional Educational ^
Service Center, Inc. Amendment #1 Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Feeding and Swallowing Network for
Children and Youth with Special Health Care Needs

17.

This amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below.

State of New Hampshire
Departm^ of Health arigkHuman Services

Date ame: Deborah

itie: Director

cheetz

Southeastern Regional Educational Service Center, Inc.

4/2/2020

Date Name: PaulHobert
Title: Execuiive Director

Southeastern Regional Educational
Service Center. Inc.

RFP.2020-BDAS-08.FeEO-A01

Amendment SI

Page 5 of 6



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Feeding and Swallowing Network for
Children and Youth with Special Health Care Needs

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

Date

0^
¥Name

te

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: ^ (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

Southeastern Regional Educational
Service Center, Inc.

RFP-2020-BDAS-08-FEED-A01

Amendment #1

Page 6 of 6
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I. William M. Gardner, Secretary ofStaicof the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that SOUTHEASTERN REGIONAL

EDUCATIONAL SERVICE CENTER is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact busirtess in New

Hampshire on August 06. 1974.1 further certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State's ofTce have been

received and is in good standing as far as this office is concerned.

Business ID: 64995

Certificate Number: 0004827290

bm

O

A

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 5th day of March A.D. 2020.

William M. Gardner

Secretary of Slate



CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

P. l.vUU lei hereby certify thai:
(Name of the elected Officer of the Corporation/LLC; cannot be contract signatory)

1.1 am a duly elected Clerk/Secretary/Officer of 5o4Kw><grr,/2?A/Uii^ Si»n't<af
. (Corporation/LLC Nellie) ^

2. The following Is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors/shareholders, duly called and
held on 2b_^fi, at which a quorum of the Directors/shareholders were present and voting.

"  (Dale)

VOTED: That Ikhfich
(Name and Title of Contract Signatory)

Is duly authorized on behalf of _

, (may list more than one person)

(Name of Corporation/ LLC)
to enter into contracts or agreements with the State

of New Hampshire and any of Its agencies or departments and further is authorized to execute any and all
documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, which
may in his/her Judgment be desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of this'vote.

3. 1 hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains In full force and effect as of the
date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate Is attached. This authority remains valid for
thirty (30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. I furUier certify that it is understood that the State of
New Hampshire will-rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(8) listed above currently occupy the
posltiDn(8) indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To the extent that there are any
limits on the authority of any listed Individual to bind the corporation Injcontracts v^h the State of New.HampshIre,
all such limitations are expressly stated herein.

Dated:
tedSignature of EH

Name:

TlUe:

cer

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

County of.

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this day of ■ 20.^,

By
(Name of Elecld^lerk/Secretary/Officer of the Agency)

(Notary Public/Justice of the Peace)

(NOTARY SEAL)

Commission Expires:

LINDA TLAFLEUR
Notary Pubuc

WHampshIreMy-0.<^mTfctpn spires
«p:t:'2p2i

Rev. 09/23/19
I.



/\COR CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
OATttMMJOOrrYYY)

02/26/2020

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A

representative or producer, and the certificate holder.OCDBCQPUTATIVC OR PRODUCER. AND THE CfcKI e nvi.ucn. — —■ .

c'::stc"..cd.,m,..o.■ .uc. ,
PRODUCER

Optisur* Risk ParlnftfS
40 SiaA Streoi

Manchester
NH 00101

INSURED

Southeastern Reoional Educational Service Center. Inc
165 South River Road. Suite F

PHONE (933)444-OPTI
-

r?s2
I lUC. Noll

lyndsay.iee^tlsure.com
WSURERtS) AFFOROING COVERAOe

insurer a: Citizens Insurance Company Of
INSURER B; Harwver Insurance Company
INSURER C;

INSURER 0:

NH 03110

insurer El

INSURER F;

nak;*

31534

22292

rPRTIPiCATE NUMBER: CL197907933COVERAGES ^ .o »r.LT^!.L?p m^FO bflQW HAVE BEEN tSSUED TO THE INSUREO NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POtlCY PERIOD
THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURE ̂ TED BaW^^^ ^ DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THISINOICATEO. NOTWITHSTA^ING ogsCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
ixaUS?OlIs 5jJd CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES- LIM IS SHOVW MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY P«0 C^S.
-  nnruriiiMB IMMiOOnYYYtTnsr

PtDDT
3^ POLICY NUMBER

PdUCVCxP
rMMIODIYYYY) LIMITS

LTR

X3

GENX AGGREGATE LWIT APPLIES PER:aPOUCY 1 I I 1 LOC
rtTHPR-

TYPE OF INSURANCE
COMMERCIAL GENERALUABIurrv

1 CLAIMS-MADE I Xl OCCUR

AUTOMOeiLE LIABILITY

ANYAUTO

X

X

OWED
AUTOS ONLY
HtREO
AUTOS ONLY X

UMBRELLA LIAS

EXCESS LIAS

SCHEDULED
AUTOS
NON-OWNED
AUTOS ONLY

X

DEOM RETENTION S

OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE

WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EUPtOYERS LIABILITY Y/N
ANY PROPRlETORn>ARTNER/EXeCUTIVE
OFFICERAIEMBER EXCLUOEOI I I
(MtMawryin NH)
UMt.dAtCAMundAf
fypCRIPTION Of OPERATIOHS biPw

Educators LeQal

I-
N/A

ZBV9628777 07/01/2019 07/01/2020

ZBV 9626777

UHV9636434

WHV9620858

O7/01/2019

EACH OCCURRENCE
TUkMAG£ TO ftiNlEC
PREMISES IFaoecunerxnl

MED 6XP lMi Of* pfjOf)

PERSONAL A AOV INJURY

GENERALAGGREGATE

PROOyCTSjCOMWOPAGG

COMBINEO SINGLE LIMIT
te.ACckHPO

07/01/2020

07/01/2019

07/01/2019

ZBV9826777 07/01/2019

07/01/2020

07/01/2020

07/01/2020

BOOIY INJURY {Ptt p*ton)

800ILY INJURY <P*( KcMVit)
PROPERfY DAMAlU
ip«f »ccid»n0

EACH OCCURRENCE

AGGREGATE

STATUTE
OTM-
1S_

EL. EACH ACCIDENT

P. L. DISEASE • EA EMPLOYEE

1.000.000

100,000

15,000

1.000.000

3,000,000

Inc

1,000.000

6 L nSEASE • POLCV LWIT

Occurrence

Aggregale

3,000,000

3,000,000

500,000

500.000

500,000

1,000,000

3.000,000

DESCRIPTION OF OFCRATTOMS / LOCATIONS«VEHICLES (ACORO 101. AWIiIppM R.m.rV, 8ch.dul., m.y b. H ,p... U «<|«ir.d,

CANCELLATION
CERTIFICATE HOLD^

NH Department of Health and Human Sen^s
129 Pleasant Street

Concord

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF. NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POUCY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED RCPRESENTATIVE

NH 03301

ACORD 25 (2016/03)

01988-

The ACORD name and logo arc registered marks of ACORD
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Inspiring innovation and ExcellerKe In
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SERESC

Our mission

Inspiring innovation and excollervco In education and professional practice."

worldni in loOs/s tducational environment b complicaitd and dorrt«ndin|. At SERESC we are
dedicated to reiponding proactively to iho day to day challertf at laced by eOucaiiortal communkioi.
SERESC offers e corttinuum of hitb OuaRty servicn ra<^| 'rom offering omitt cortsuluiion ar>d
lecbnical atsisiartce. instructioAai coaching direct ien4cts to chUdren. youth and families and the
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To the Board of Directors of ceenfieid, ma
Southeastern Regional Education Service Center, Inc. Ellsworth.me

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Southeastern Regional
Education Service Center, Inc. (the Organization), which comprise the statement of
financial position as of June 30, 2017, and the related statements of activities and
cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these finan
cial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of
internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial state
ments that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on
our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America. Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assess
ments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and
fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate-in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opin
ion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no
such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting



policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained Is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly. In all material
respects, the financial position of Southeastern Regional Education Service Center,
inc. as of June 30, 2017, and the changes In Its net assets and Its cash flows for the
year then ended In accordance with accounting principles generally accepted In the
United States of America.

Report on Summarized Comparative Information

We have previously audited the Organization's fiscal year 2016 financial statements,
and we expressed an unmodified audit opinion on those audited financial statements
in our report dated May 9, 2017. In our opinion, the summarized comparative
information presented herein as of and for the year ended June 30. 2016 Is consistent.
In all material respects, with the audited financial statements from which It has been
derived.

Other Matters

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial state
ments as a whole. The Schedule of Functional Expenses is presented for purposes
of additional analysis and Is not a required part of the financial statements. Such
Information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial
statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied
in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, Including
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and
other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements
themselves, and other additional procedures In accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information Is
fairly stated In all material respects In relation to the financial statements as a whole.

August 28. 2019



SOUTHEASTERN REGIONAL EDUCATION SERVICE CENTER, INC.

Statement of Financial Position
June 30. 2017

(with comparative totals as of June 30.2016)

ASSETS

Current Assets;

Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash - bond escrow
Receivables

Prepaid expenses
Total Current Assets

Property and Equipment. Net

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Current Uabillties:

Accounts payable
Acaued expenses
Other [labilities

Deferred revenue

Line of credit
Current portion of long term debt

Total Current Liabilities

Long-term Debt, Net of Current Portion

Total Liabilities

Net Assets:

Unrestricted

Board designated
Temporarily restricted

Total Net Assets

Unrestricted

$  228,368
172,904

836.383
26.087

1,263,742

3.504,833

$ 4,768.575

486.578

16.779

70,915
300.000

115.000

989.272

3.640.000

4.629,272

63.963
75.340

139.303

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS S 4.768.575 $ 131.865

Temporarily 2017 2016

ResWcled Total Total

$ 131.865 $ 360.233 $ 148.414

172,904 175.319

836.383 879.544

26.087 10.971

131.865 1.395.607 1.214,248

3.504.833 2,463.726

$  131,865 4.900.440 3.677,974

$ $ 486.578 $ 292,560

16.779 55,394
. 17,727

70.915 28,589

300,000 75.000

115,000 235,000

-
989,272 704.270

3.640.000 3.755.000

-
4,629.272 4.459.270

63,963 (979.650)
_ 75.340 49,940

131.865 131.865 148.414

131.865 271.168 1781.296)

S 131.865 $ 4.900.440 S 3.677.974

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.



SOUTHEASTERN REGIONAL EDUCATION SERVICE CENTER. INC.

Statement of Activities

,  For the Year Ended June 30.2017
(with comparative totals for the year ended June 30,2016)

Unrestricted

Temporarily
Restricted

2017

Total

2016

Total

Support and Revenue;
Support;

Federal, State, and local grants
Other grants
Contributions

Revenue:

Consulting revenue
Membership revenue
Other services

Investment Income:

Interest Income

Net assets released from restriction

$  767.533

7,190

4,137.468
47,235

1.824.273

539

61.229

$
25.000

19,676

4

(61.229)

$  767.533

25,000
26,866

■ 4.137,468
47.235

1.824.273

543

$  812,155
193,993

70,208

3,961,491
75.109

2.067,179

79

Total Support and Revenue 6.845,467 (18.549) 6,828,918 7,180,214

Expenses;
Program services
Management and general

6,159.573

846.881
• 6,159,573

846,881

6.356.845

837,319

Total Expenses 7.006.454 7,006,454 7.194,164

Change in net assets before
impairment gain/(loss) (160.987) (16.549) (177,536) (13.950)

Impairment galn/(loss) (see Note 3)

Change in net assets

Net Assets (deficit). Beginning of Year

Net Assets (deficit), End of Year

1.230.000

1.069.013

(929.710)

(16.549)

148.414

1.230.000

1,052.464

(781,296)

(3.505.982)

(3.519.932)

2.738,636

$  139.303 $ 131.865 $ 271.168 I (781,296)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.



SOUTHEASTERN REGIONAL EDUCATION SERVICE CENTER, INC.

Statement of Cash Flows

For the Year Ended June 30, 2017
(with comparative totals for the year ended June 30, 2016)

Cash Flows From Operating Activities;
Change in net assets before impairment loss
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets
to net cash from operating activities:

Depreciation
Loss on sale of equipment
(Increase) decrease in:

Receivables

Prepaid expenses
Increase (decrease) in:
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses

Other liabilities

Deferred revenue

Net Cash From Operating Activities

Cash Flows From Investing Activities:
Purchase of fixed assets

Net Cash Used by' Investing Activities

Cash Flows From Financing Activities:
Line of credit proceeds
Principal payments of long term debt

Net Cash Used by Financing Activities

Net Change in Cash, Cash Equivalents and Restricted Cash

Cash. Cash Equivalents, and Restricted Cash, Beginning

Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Restricted Cash, Ending

SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION:

Interest Paid

2017 2016

$ (177,536) $ (13.950)

189,614 232.754

- 4,161

43,161 (133,413)
(15,116) (2,198)

194,018 34,636

(38,615) (9,677)

(17,727) (906)

42.326 3,056

220,125 114,463

(721) (10.007)

(721) (10,007)

225,000 75,000

(235.000) (225,000)

(10,000) (150,000)

209,404 (45,544)

323,733 369.277

$ 533.137 $  323,733

$  134.706 $  156.779

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.



SOUTHEASTERN REGIONAL EDUCATION SERVICE CENTER. INC.

Notes to the Financial Statements

1, Organization

Southeastern Regional Education Service Center, Inc. (the Organization) was
formed in 1974 when fourteen New Hampshire school districts pooled their
resources to support special education students being mainstreamed into public
schools for the first time. The Organization's main focus areas include:

•  Education services to school districts and educators throughout New
Hampshire.

•  Professional development center with ten conference rooms, each with
state of the art technology and audiovisual equipment, and full catering
services available.

• A vision services program within the Organization supports school
districts in meeting the unique needs of students who have a vision
impairment, including students with additional disabilities. Services
offered include assessments, instruction, and consultation.

The Organization was created as. and remains, a nonprofit entity managed by
a  Board of Directors comprised of school board members and
superintendents of schools. As an educational consortium, the Organization
has both a regional and statewide focus in order to serve all educational
communities. The Organization is known for piloting innovative practices and
creativity, technological sophistication, and professional development that
contributes to accountability, improved student learning, and excellence in the
teaching profession.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Comparative Financial Information

The accompanying financial statements include certain prior-year summarized
comparative information in total, but not by net asset class. Such information
does not include sufficient detail to constitute a presentation in conformity with
Accounting Principles Generally Accepted in the United States of America
(GAAP). Accordingly, such information should be read in conjunction with the
audited financial statements for the year ended June 30. 2016, from which the
summarized information was derived.



Cash and Cash Equivalents

All cash and highly liquid financial instruments with original maturities of three
months or less, and which are neither held for nor restricted by donors for
long-term purposes, are considered to be cash and cash equivalents.

Receivables

Receivables consist primarily of noninterest-bearing amounts due for services
and programs. The allowance for uncollectable accounts receivable is based
on historical experience, an assessment of economic conditions, and a review
of subsequent collections. Accounts receivable are written off when deemed
uncollectable. At June 30. 2017, no allowance has been recorded as
management believes receivables to by fully collectible.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment is reported in the Statement of Financial Position at
cost, if purchased, and at fair value at the date of donation, if donated. Major
additions and improvements are capitalized, while ordinary maintenance and
repairs are charged to expense. Depreciation is computed using the straight-
line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets, as follows:

Buildings and improvements 40 years

Furniture, fixtures, and
equipment 5-10 years

The carrying values of property and equipment are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or circumstances indicate that the carrying value of an asset
may not be recoverable from the estimated future cash flows expected to
result from its use and eventual disposition. When considered impaired, an
irnpairment loss is recognized to the extent carrying value exceeds the fair
value of the asset. At June 30, 2017, an impairment gain was recorded to
partially reverse the impairment loss recorded in fiscal year 2016. The
recorded gain was based on the subsequent disposal of the impaired asset
{see Note 3).

Net Assets

Net assets, revenues, gains, and losses are classified based on the existence
or absence of donor-imposed restrictions. Accordingly, net assets and
changes therein are classified and reported as follows:

Unrestricted Net Assets - Net assets available for use in general
operations. Unrestricted board-designated net assets consist of net
assets designated by the Board of Directors for specific purposes.



Temporarily Restricted Net Assets - Net assets subject to donor
restrictions that may or will be met by expenditures or actions and/or
the passage of time. Contributions that are restricted by donors are
reported as increases In unrestricted net assets if the restrictions
expire (that is, when a stipulated time restriction ends or purpose
restriction Is accomplished) in the reporting period in which the
revenue is recognized. All other donor-restricted contributions are
reported as increases in temporarily or permanently restricted net
assets, depending on the nature of the restrictions. When a restriction
expires, temporarily restricted net assets are reclassified to
unrestricted net assets and reported in the Statement of Activities as
net assets released from restrictions.

Permanently Restricted Net Assets - Net assets whose use is limited
by donor-imposed restrictions that neither expire by the passage of
time nor can be fulfilled or otherwise removed. The restrictions

stipulate that resources be maintained permanently but permit
expending of the income generated in accordance with the provisions
of the agreements.

At June 30, 2017, the Organization did not have any permanently restricted
net assets.

Revenue and Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized when earned. Program service fees and payments
under cost-reimbursable contracts received in advance are deferred to the

applicable period in which the related services are performed or expenditures
are incurred, respectively.

Accounting for Contributions

Contributions are recognized when received. All contributions are reported as
increases in unrestricted net assets unless use of the contributed assets is

specifically restricted by the donor. Amounts received that are restricted by
the donor to use in future periods or for specific purposes are reported as
increases in either temporarily restricted or permanently restricted net assets,
consistent with the nature of the restriction. Unconditional promises with
payments due in future years have an implied restriction to be used in the
year the payment is due, and therefore are reported as temporarily restricted
until the payment is due unless the contribution is clearly intended to support
activities of the current fiscal year or is received with permanent restrictions.
Conditional promises, such as matching grants, are not recognized until they
become unconditional, that is, until all conditions on which they depend are
substantially met.



Donated Services

The Organization receives donated services from a variety of unpaid
volunteers assisting the Organization in its progranis. No amounts have been
recognized in the accompanying Statement of Activities because the cntena
for recognition of such volunteer effort under Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles have not been satisfied.

Contributions of donated services that create or enhance nonfinancial assets
or that require specialized skills, are provided by individuals possessing those
skills, and vifould typically need to be purchased if not provided by donation,
are recorded at their fair values in the period received.

PunctionaJ Allocation of Expenses

The costs of program and supporting services activities have been summa
rized on a functional basis in the Statement of Activities. The Schedule of Func
tional Expenses presents the natural classification detail of expenses by
function. Accordingly, certain costs have been allocated among the programs
and supporting services benefited.

General and administrative expenses include those costs that are not directly
identifiable with any specific program, but which provide for the overall support
and direction of the Organization.

Tax Sfafus

Southeast Regional Education Service Center, Inc. is exempt from federal
income tax under Section 501(a) of the Internal Revenue Code as an organi
zation described in Section 501(c)(3). The Organization has also been clas
sified as an entity that is not a private foundation within the meaning of
Section 509(a) and qualifies for deductible contributions.

The Organization follows FASB ASC 740-10, Accounting for Uncertainty in
Income Taxes, which clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes
and prescribes a recognition threshold and measurement attribute for financial
statement recognition and measurement of tax positions taken or expected to be
taken in a tax return. FASB ASC 740-10 did not have a material impact on the
Organization's financial statements.

The Organization's Federal Form 990 (Return of Organization Exempt From
Income Tax) is subject to examination by the IRS, generally for three years after
filing.

The Organization recognizes interest related to unrecognized tax benefits in
interest expense and penalties that are included within reported expenses.
During the year ended June 30, 2017, the Organization had no interest or
penalties accrued related to unrecognized tax benefits.



Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles requires management to make estimates and assump
tions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date .of the financial statements, and
the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.
Accordingly, actual amounts could differ from those estimates.

Financial Instruments and Credit Risk

Deposit concentration risk is managed by placing cash accounts with financial
institutions believed to be creditworthy. At times, amounts on deposit may
exceed insured limits. To date, no losses have been experienced in any of
these accounts. Credit risk associated with receivables is considered to be
limited due to high historical collection rates.

Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures

Certain liiabilitles are reported at fair value in the financial statements. Fair
value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a
liability in an orderly transaction in the principal, or most advantageous,
market at the measurement date under current market conditions regardless
of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using -another
valuation technique. Inputs used to determine fair value refer broadly to the
assumptions that market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability,
including assumptions about risk. Inputs may be observable or unobservable.
Observable inputs are inputs that reflect the assumptions market participants
would use in pricing the asset or liability based on market data obtained from
sources independent of the reporting entity. Unobservable inputs are inputs
that reflect the reporting entity's own assumptions about the assumptions
market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability based on the
best information available. A three-tier hierarchy categorizes the inputs as
follows:

Level 1 - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities that are accessible at the measurement date.

Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that
are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly.
These include quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active
markets, quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in
markets that are not active, inputs other than quoted prices that are
observable for the asset or liability, and market-corroborated inputs.

Level 3 - Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability. In these
situations, inputs are developed using the best information available in
the circumstances.
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When available, the Organization measures fair value using Level 1 inputs
because they generally provide the most reliable evidence of fair value.
However. Level 1 inputs are not available for many of the assets and liabilities
that the Organization is required to measure at fair value (for example,
unconditional contributions receivable and in-kind contributions).

The primary uses of fair value measures in the Organization's financial
statements are;

•  Initial measurement of noncash gifts.

• Recurring measurement of line of credit (Note 4).

•  Recurring measurement of long-term debt (Note 5).

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, receivables, accounts
payable, accrued expenses, other liabilities, deferred revenue, and line of
credit approximate fair value due to the short-term nature of the items.

Reclassifications

Certain reclassifications of amounts previously reported have been made to
the accompanying financial statements to maintain consistency between peri
ods presented. The reclassifications had no impact on previously reported net
assets.

3. Property, Equipment and Depreciation

A summary of the major components of property and equipment is presented
below:

2017 2016

Land and land improvements $ 241,955 $ 241,955
Buildings and improvements* 3,298.045 2,161.945
Furniture, fixtures, and equipment 1.384,808 1,384.087

Subtotal 4.924.808 3.787.987

Less: accumulated depreciation (1,419,975) (1.324,261)

Total $ 3,504.833 $ 2.463.726

Depreciation expense for the year ended June 30, 2017 totaled $189,614.

•As a result of the sale of the building subsequent to year end. the Organization recorded an
impairment gain of $1.230,000 in fiscal year 2017 to partially reverse the impairment loss that
was recorded in fiscal year 2016.
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4. Line of Credit

The Organization has available a revolving line of credit with a bank in the
amount of $300,000. The outstanding balance on this line at June 30, 2017
was $300,000. This line expires on October 1. 2017. is payable on demand, is
secured by real property, and requires monthly interest only payments
calculated on the outstanding balance from the previous month. Interest is
variable, based on Wall Street Prime adjusted daily. Said rate is subject to a
floor of 4.00%. The current rate at June 30, 2017 was 5.50%.

As discussed in Note 2 to these financial statements, the Organization is
required to report its fair value measurement in one of three levels, which are
based on the ability to observe in the marketplace the inputs to the
Organization's valuation techniques. The Organization's line of credit is
categorized as Level 2 in the fair value hierarchy.

5. Long-term Debt

Long-term debt as of June 30, 2017 consisted of the followirig: ■-

Bond payable due in varying monthly installments
and interest at 2.8% due semiannually, paid by the
Organization on a monthly basis, payable over 30
years, and secured by a letter of credit. $ 3,755,000

Total* 3,755,000

Less amount due within one year (115.000)
Long-term debt, net of current portion $ 3,640,000

'Subsequent to year end, the bond was paid in full.

The following is a summary of future payments on the previously mentioned
long-term debt.

Year Amount

2018 $ 115.000
2019 120,000
2020 125,000
2021 130,000
2022 140,000

Thereafter 3.125,000

$  3,755,000

12



On December 29, 2011. the Organization and the purchaser of the bond
agreed to a new multi-annual rate agreement under which the bond was
subject mandatory remarketing on October 31, 2016. The Organization is
subject to financial covenants that require the maintenance of minimum and
maximum liquidity ratio, debt service coverage ratio and debt to tangible net
worth ratio These financial covenants are effective if the bond is no longer
secured by a letter of credit. In fiscal year 2017, the bond was secured by a
letter of credit, making the financial covenants inapplicable.

As discussed in Note 2 to these financial statements, the Organization is
required to report its fair value measurement in one of three levels, which are
based on the ability to observe in the marketplace the inputs to the
Organization's valuation techniques. The Organization's long-term debt Is
categorized as Level 2 in the fair value hierarchy

6. Board Designated Net Assets

Board designated net assets are comprised of two programs, the Center for
Effective Behavioral Interventions and Supports (CEBIS) program and SMS
services by speech pathologists. Funds represent net earnings from CEBIS
workshops, consulting and SMS insurance payments. The CEBIS funds are
to be used to offset expenses that are not funded by grants. The SMS funds
are to be used to service speech patients after the yearly grant funds from the
NH Bureau of Special Medical Services have been expended.

7. Temporarily Restricted Net Assets

Temporarily restricted net assets are available for the following purposes at
June 30, 2017;

Handicap Fund ^
New Hampshire Charitable Foundation Grant 36
Preschool Technical Assistance Network - District Funds 50,727
Preschool Technical Assistance Network - Private Grants 56,580
Scholarship Fund li846_
Temporarily restricted net assets ^ 131.865

8. Net Assets Released from Restriction

Net assets are released from program restrictions by incurring expenses sat
isfying the restricted purpose.
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9. Defined Contribution Benefit Plan

The Organization sponsors a defined contribution plan (the Plan) covering all
employees age 18 and over, with at least one consecutive year of service who
agree to make contributions to the Plan. The Organization has the option of
making a discretionary matching contribution. No matching contributions were
made by the Organization for the year ended June 30, 2017.

10. Related Party Transactions

The Organization's Board of Directors is comprised of superintendents and
school board representatives from member New Hampshire school districts.
The Organization provides a significant amount of sen/ices to several of these
entities.

11. Concentrations of Risk

A material part of the Organization's revenue is derived from services provided
to member districts and the New Hampshire Department of Health and
Human Services, the loss of which would have a materially adverse effect on
the Organization. During the year ended June 30, 2017, Merrimack School
District (SAD 26). the New Hampshire Department of Health and Human
Services, and Bedford School District (SAU 25) accounted for 17%, 8%, and
6% of the Organization's program service revenue, respectively.

Additionally, Merrimack School District and the New Hampshire Department of
Health and Human Services accounted for 16% and 22% of the Organization's
accounts receivable, respectively.

12. Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow Information

In fiscal year 2016, the Organization early adopted Accounting Standard
Update (ASU) No. 2016-18, Statement of Cash Flows (Topic 230): Restricted
Cash. The amendrrients in this update require that a Statement of Cash
Flows explain the change during the fiscal year to include restricted cash as
part of the total of cash and cash equivalents.

The following table provides a reconciliation of cash, cash equivalents, and
restricted cash reported within the Statement of Financial Positions that sum
to the total of the same such amounts shown in the Statement of Cash Flows.
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2Q17 2016

Cash and cash equivalents $ 360.233 $ 148,414
Restricted cash 172.904 175,319

Total Cash. Cash Equivalents, and Restricted Cash
shown in the Statement of Cash Flows $ 533,137 $ 323^73^

13. Subsequent Events

In accordance with the provisions set forth by FASB ASC, Subsequent Events,
events and transactions from July 1, 2017 through August 28, 2019, the date
the financial statements were available to be Issued, have been evaluated by
management for disclosure.

On October 2, 2017, the Organization completed the sale of the property
located at 29 Commerce Drive In Bedford, NH. As part of the sale of this
property, the Series 2006 Bonds were redeemed, leaving a balance of
$308,695 on a Letter or Credit to People's United Bank.

On December 31. 2017, the Organization discontinued the operations of the
Conference and Event Center and completed its relocation to leased office
space In Bedford, NH.

In June 2018, the Organization adopted a new set of by-laws and ceased
operating as a membership organization. The by-laws now call for a Board of
Directors consisting of between seven and eleven directors, with term limits
and a process for the existing Board to elect new directors.

On July 17, 2018, the Organization completed a sale of property located on
Brentwood Drive In Merrimack, NH. After the sale of the Brentwood Drive
property, the Organization fully satisfied the amounts due to People's United
Bank on the Letter of Credit.

On October 22, 2018, the Organization converted the remaining balance of
$264,442 on a Line of Credit due to People's United Bank to a 60 Month
Term Loan with People's at a rate of 6.25%.

Since the relocation of the business from Commerce Drive, and the
discontinuation of the Conference and Event Center operations, the
Organization has generated total support and revenue in excess of Its total
expenses, and has adopted a business plan that management and the
governing body believe will continue to generate increases In the
Organization's net assets.
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SOUTHEASTERN REGIONAL EDUCATION SERVICE CENTER. INC.

Schedule of Functional Expenses
For the Year Ended June 30,2017

(with comparative totals for the year ended June 30,2016)

Program Management 2017 2016

Services and General Total Total

Personnel expense:
Salaries and wages $ 2.602.928 $ 354.447 $ 2.957.375 $ 3,244,698

Employee benefits 373.594 • 79.988 453,582 507.227

Payroll taxes 188.615 26,481 215,096 241,853

Advertising 4,590 518 5,108 11,629

Catering 89,073 - 89,073 178,660

Conferences, conventions and meetings 105.780 30,781 136,561 157,901

Contract services 2,135.131 160.040 2.295.171 1.857,792

Depreciation 184.220 5,394 189,614 232,754

Fees and service charges 1.412 31,900 33,312 -

Insurance - 30,352 30,352 26,976

Interest 130.875 3,831 134.706 155,535

Miscellaneous . 8,888 8,888 24,419

Occupancy 181,895 64.118 246,013 273.460

Office expense 36,128 33.257 69.385 140,519

Professional fees - 15,838 15.838 17,420

Travel 125.332 1.048 126.380 123.322

Total Functional Expenses $ 6.159.573 $ 846.881 $ 7.006,454 $ 7,194,165

See Independent Auditors' Report.

16



SERpSC
Southeastern Regional Education Service Center, Inc.

165 South River Road, Unit F
Bedford, NH 03110

Phone: 603-206-6800

Fax: 603-218-6045

www.seresc.net

PAUL HEBERT

Executive Director

5ERESC Board of Directors 2020

Andy Schneider, Chair
Eric McGee, Vice Chair

Charles Littlefield, Secretary

Richard Ayers

Marge Polack
Kim Royer

Mission Statement: Inspiring Innovation and Excellence In Education and Professional Practice.



M. ALICIA GARCIA

OBJECTIVE

To obtain a position with a competitive, growth-oriented company where my abilities to Initiate action,
organize and cfiectivcly communicate will result in excellent quality and meaningful service.

SUMMARY

A successful professional with over twenty years of experience in the healthcare industry providing
administrative support with the ability to work independently in an energetic, fast-paced environment.
Excellent communication and organizational skills with the ability to completely follow-through on
multiple tasks results In an efficiently run organization and a high level of client satisfaction.

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

CAmical Services Coordinator. SERESC Bedford NH October 20J6-Fresent

Provide direct support to the Consulting School Psychologist/BCBA Lead
Provide direct support to the Consulting School Psychologists
Provide direct support to the Medical-Educational Therapeutic Evaluation Team
ASHA Continuing Education Administrator
Additionally, please sec job description below

Protect Assistant/Feedinp & Swollowim. SERESC. Bedford. NH November 201]-Present

Maintain database of incoming referrals & review with supervisor for assignment
Electronically store & confidentially maintain patient medical records
Efficiently respond to medical records requests & alert appropriate provider of such
Credential feeding & swallowing providers with insurance companies
Ensure insurance referrals and authorizations arc obtained for maximum reimbursement
Collect billing data from providers to ensure proper claim submission and reduce claim denials
Submit private insurance & Mcdicaid claims in a timely fashion and with appropriate modifier codes
Track & post all insurance reimbursements; pursue unpaid claims to ensure maximum reimbursement
Ensure monthly reports received by feeding & swallowing providers
Track provider invoices & encounter data from providers to ensure complete information received
Track financial data to include usage of patient service funds, office supplies & other expenses
Provide direct support to Program Director & clinical service feeding & swallowing providers

Excellent work attendance

Office Manaeer. AraQona Chiropractic. Manchester. NH July 2015-October 20J6

Oversee all clerical and support staff to ensure maximum office productivity
Ensure insurance referrals and authorizations are obtained for maximum reimbursement
Ensure submission of private insurance & Medicare claims are performed in a timely fashion
Track & post all insurance reimbursements; pursue unpaid claims to ensure maximum reimbursement
Track & post all patient payments; pursue delinquent accounts
Complete month-end activities for monthly financial reconciliation
Establish in-office policies and procedures when necessary

Excellent work attendance

Perform quality assurance checks



M. ALICIA GARCIA

EDUCATION

Associate in Business Science, Hesser College, Manchester, NH
President's List

COMPUTER SKILLS

Proficient in Medisense, Emdeon billing system. Office Ally billing system, Microsoft Office applications
including Microsoft Word. Microsoft Works, Microsoft Excel. Outlook as well as Windows. Type 89
WPM, excellent at 10-key calculator.
Achieve new computer skills easily.

PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Understanding the New Therapy Evaluation CRT Codes, Gawenda Seminars & Consulting

Managing Effective Meetings, Courses for Success

Business Writing, Courses for Success

Get in Shape for the ICD-10 Challenge. Gawenda Seminars & Consulting

Payer Contracting, Pricing & Payment Trends, Gawenda Seminars & Consulting

The Angry Smile, SERESC

LANGUAGES SPOKEN

Spanish, Intermediate Level

VOLUNTEER WORK

School for Worship. Dance. Hookseit. NH
Front Desk Attendant

Weare Christian Church, Weare. NH
Nursery Care Provider Volunteer

SERESC Director ofLearning Intetyieyv Committee, Bedford, NH
Committee Member

Mt. Zion Christian Schools. Manchester. NH
Parent Volunteer

SERESC Executive Director Interview Committee. Bedford. NH
Member

Manchester Area Adoptive & Foster Parent Association. NH
Treasurer

Sugar Spice Preschool, Weare, NH
Member at Large

2016-Present

2012-2018

2015

20IS-20M

2012

2008-2010

2006-2009



M. ALICIA GARCIA

OBJECTIVE

To obtain a position with a competitive, growth-oriented company where my abilities to initiate action,
organize and effectively communicate will result in excellent quality and meaningful service.

SUMNIARY

A successful professional with over twenty years of experience In the healthcare industry providing
administrative support with the ability to work independently in an energetic, fast-paced environment.
Excellent communication and organizational skills with the ability to completely follow-through on
multiple tasks results in an efficiently run organization and a high level of client satisfaction.

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

Ciinical Services Coordinator. SERESC. Bedford. NH October 2016-Present

Provide direct support to the Consulting School Psychologist/BCBA Lead
Provide direct support to the Consulting School Psychologists
Provide direct support to the Medical-Educational Therapeutic Evaluation Team
ASHA Continuing Education Administrator
Additionally, please see job description below

Project Assistanl/Feedine & Swallowins. SERESC. Bedford. NH November 2011-Present

Maintain database of incoming referrals & review with supervisor for assignment
Electronically store & confidentially maintain patient medical records
Efficiently respond to medical records requests & alert appropriate provider of such
Credential feeding & swallowing providers with insurance companies
Ensure insurance referrals and authorizations are obtained for maximum reimbursement
Collect billing data from providers to ensure proper claim submission and reduce claim denials
Submit private insurance & Mcdicaid claims in a timely fashion and with appropriate modifier codes
Track & post all insurance reimbursements; pursue unpaid claims to ensure maximum rcimbursemeni
Ensure monthly reports received by feeding & swallowing providers
Track provider invoices & encounter data from providers to ensure complete information received
Track financial data to include usage of patient service funds, ofTice supplies & other expenses
Provide direct support to Program Director & clinical service feeding & swallowing providers

Excellent work attendance

Office Manager. Ara^ona Chiropractic. Manchester. NH July 2015-Oclober 2016

Oversee all clerical and support staff to ensure maximum office productivity
Ensure Insurance referrals and authorizations are obtained for maximum reimbursement
Ensure submission of private insurance & Medicare claims are perfonncd in a timely fashion
Track & post all insurance reimbursements; pursue unpaid claims to ensure maximum reimbursement
Track & post all patient payments; pursue delinquent accounts
Complete month-end activities for monthly financial reconciliation
Establish in-office policies and procedures when necessary

Excellent work attendance

Perform quality assurance checks



M. ALICIA GARCIA

EDUCATION

Associate in Business Science, Hesscr College, Manchester, NH
President's List

COMPUTER SKILLS

Proficient in Mcdisense, Emdeon billing system, Office Ally billing system, Microsoft Office applications
including Microsoft Word, Microsoft Works, Microsoft Excel, Outlook as well as Windows. Type 89
WPM, excellent at 10-key calculator.
Achieve new computer skills easily.

PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Understanding the New Therapy Evaluation CPT Codes, Gawenda Seminars & Consulting

Managing EfTcclive Meetings, Courses for Success

Business Writing, Courses for Success

Get in Shape for the ICD-10 Challenge, Gawenda Seminars & Consulting

Payer Contracting, Pricing & Payment Trends, Gawenda Seminars & Consulting

The Angry Smile, SERESC

LANGUAGES SPOKEN

Spanish, Intermediate Level

VOLUNTEER WORK

Schoolfor Worship. Dance. HookseU, NH
Front Dc'sk Attendant

Weare Chrislian Church, Weare. NH

Nursery Care Provider Volunteer

SERESC Director ofLearning Interview Committee. Bedford. NH
Committee Member

Mt. Zion Christian Schools, Manchester. NH
Parent Volunteer

SERESC Executive Director Interview Committee, Bedford. NH
Member

Manchester Area Adoptive & Foster Parent Association. NH
Treasurer

Sugar A Spice Preschool. Weare, NH
Member at Large

2016-Present

2012-2018

2015

2013-2014

2012

2008-2010

2006-2009



Judith H. Mikatni, MA CCC

PROFILE

Speech Language Pathologist with 37 years of clinical experience, 35 years experience as an
administrator and supervisor, 7 years experience adjunct professor. Specialize in working with children
with: special health care needs; feeding and swallowing disorders; autistic spectrum disorders; motor
speech disorders; social-pragmatic communication disorders; sensory integration dysfunction.
Regularly provide conferences, workshops, training and consultation to parents, personnel in hospitals,
early intervention and public school teams, and community agencies regarding areas of specialties.
Teach a semester long graduate course in Pediatric Dysphagia. Provide on-going supervision and
mentoring to professionals serving infants and children with feeding and swallowing and communication
disorders; also graduate students in speech language pathology. Excel at working as a member of a team
to design services which result in high consumer satisfaction, and to put strategic plans into practice.
Dedicated to consumer driven services, coordinated service delivery, and continual service
improvement. Committed to documenting reports and creating educational materials that are friendly to
a diversity of consumers. Have consistently operated financially healthy programs via accurate
budgeting, optimizing third party revenue and securing grants.

Summary Of Qualifications

CLIMICAL

•  37 years experience serving children with feeding and swallowing disorders, from newborn through
young adulthood. Work directly with children's families, medical teams, Early Supports and
Services, school teams, etc., providing evaluations, intervention and consultation.

•  Have conducted and interpreted over 3500 pediatric videofluoroscopic swallow studies.
•  Extensive experience with evaluating and treating children with: social-pragmatic communication

disorders; complex neurological disorders; autism spectrum disorders; oral sensori-motor disorders;
motor speech disorders; sensory integration disorders; hearing impairment; the scqualae of
prematurity; metabolic and genetic disorders.

•  Trained in the Newborn Individualized Developmental Care and Assessment Program (NIDCAP)
and Infant Behavioral Assessment Scale (IBA),

•  Trained in American Sign Language and Signed English.

ADMINISTRATION

•  Program Manager of a state-wide Feeding and Swallowing Program which is a part of the New
Hampshire Nutrition, Feeding and Swallowing Network, supported through a grant from Special
Medical Services the Department of Health and Human Services.

•  Has developed and managed agency, state, and federal budgets for a hospital affiliated Early
Intervention Program and currently NH Department of Health and Human Services grant for the
Nutrition, Feeding and Swallowing Program

•  Submitted, secured and implemented private charitable, and state and federal grants.
•  Conducted program development and strategic planning with staff and management.
•  Designed, measured, and interpreted quality management tools including continuous service

improvement (CSI) activities, consumer satisfaction surveys, and quality assurance studies.
•  Created consumer information materials including brochures, resource booklets, and handbooks
•  Determined, organized, and maintained program safety and emergency procedures
»  Overseen program's participation in research projects.
•  Addressed any consumer recommendations or concerns.

TEAM LEADERSHIP AND SUPERVISION
•  Recruit, interview, and supervise speech language pathology, occupational therapy and physical

therapy providers.



Judith H. Mikami, MA CCC

•  Insured the completion of a competency-based comprehensive orientation for newly hired consultants
and on-going competency developing.

•  Extensive experience with supervising and mentoring other professionals in feeding and swallowing
disorders and autistic spectrum disorders.

•  Supervised a transdisciplinary team of physical, occupational and speech therapists, developmental
pediatricians, social workers, and psychologists serving hospital-based early intervention program,
NICUandSCN.

• Currently supervise a team of speech pathologists and occupational therapists trained to provide
feeding and swallowing evaluation, swallow studies and follow-up care; also speech pathologists
serving the public schools.

• Develop and regularly update job descriptions and program handbook.

TRAIMING

• Adjunct professor for the University of New Hampshire Communication Sciences and Disorders.
Regularly present workshops related to pediatric feeding and swallowing disorders to hospitals,
school system personnel and early intervention providers in New Hampshire and surrounding states.

•  Regularly provide trainings to professionals, paraprofessionals, and parents on communication issues
and approaches for children with autistic spectrum disorders.

•  Present at two or more conferences per year in areas of specialty.

Work Experience
Jan. 20l9-Jan.2Q20
Dec. 2015-present

Spring 2011-2018

Feb. 1995-present

June m6-Feb. 1995

Aug. 1985-June 1986

Oct. 1984-Aug. 1985

June 1983'Oct. 1984

Education

Mcfy 1983 Univers

University of Dept. of Communication Sciences and Disorders; guest lecturer
Concord Hospital; per diem staff; pediatric videonuoroscopic swallow studies;
consultation to the Pediatric Unit and Special Care Nursery.
University of New Hampshire, Dept. of Communication Sciences and Disorders-
Adjunct Professor-teach semester long, 3 credit graduate level course and 1 -3
credit Independent Studies to graduate students in Pediatric Dysphagia
Southeastern Regional Educational Service Center, Inc.
Speech Language Pathologist; Program Coordinator State-wide Nutrition,
Feeding and Swallowing Program
Southem New Hampshire Medical Center

Early Intervention Program
Southern New Hampshire Regional Medical Center

Early Intervention Program
Southern New Hampshire Regional Medical Center

Speech and Hearing Department
Easter Seals/Goodwill Industries of New Hampshire

Director

StajfSLP

StaffSLP

StaffSLP

ity of Denver Masters of Arts in Speech Language Pathology
with a specialty in Educational Audiology

June 1981 Columbia University Post Graduate Certification in working with deaf
and hearing Impaired infants and their parents

Dec. 1980 Northeastern University Bachelor of Arts in Speech Language Pathology

Professional Certifications and Affiliations

Certificate of Clinical Competence from the American Speech and Hearing Association-
Acct. # 01007137 (since 1984)

Licensed by the State of New Hampshire Board of Speech-Language Pathology; License #385
Licensed by the Commonwealth of Massachusetts Division of Professional Licensiire Board of
Speech-Language Pathology; License # 9244
Healthcare Provider (CPR and AED) Program-certified through February 2022



CONTRACTOR NAME

Key Personnel

Name Job Title Salary
(annualized)

% Paid from

this Contract

Amount Paid from

this Contract

(annualized)

Judy Mikami Procram Manager "  $91,000 59% $53,409

Alicia Garcia Program Assistant / Billing
Specialist

$54,444 100% $54,444

•

1



JefTrcy A. Meyerf
ComniUfioDer

ChrUtjn* SaotanivUo
Dlractor

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

OFFICE OF MEDICAID SERVICES

Bureau of Developmental Services

105 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03M1

C03-271-5023 l^00-55^3345 Ext. 5034
Fax: €03-271-5165 TOD Aeceix: 1-800-735-2964 www.dhbs.Db fov

March 8. 2018

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hannpshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Bureau of Developmental
Services, to enter into an agreement with Southeastern Regional Sen/ice Center {Vendor
#154866-8001), 29 Commerce Drive Bedford, NH 03110, to provide Feeding and Swallowing
Consultation Services for Children with Special Health Care Needs in an amount not to
exceed $368,230, effective to April 1, 2018 upon Governor and Executive Council approval
through March 31. 2020. 30% Federal Funds. 70% General Funds.

Funds are available in the following accounl(s) for State Fiscal Year 2018 and State
Fiscal Year 2019, and are anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Year 2020, with authority
to adjust encumbrances between State Fiscal Years without further approval from the
Governor and Executive Council through the Budget Office, if needed and justified.

05-95-90-930010-51910000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVS, HHS; DEVELOPMENTAL SERVICES, DIVISION OF DEVELOPMENTAL
SERVICES. SPECIAL MEDICAL SERVICES

State

Fiscal

Year

Class/Account Class Title Job Number
Total

Amount

2018 562-500912 CSHCN Assistance 93001000 $ 46.029

2019 562-500912 CSHCN Assistance 93001000 $184,115

2020 562-500912 CSHCN Assistance 93001000 $138,086

Total $ 368,230

EXPLANATION

The purpose of this request is to address the needs of children and youth from birth
through age twenty-one (21), with special healthcare needs who have conditions that require
specialty feeding and swallowing consultation.

The Feeding and Swallowing program provides home or community assessments,
intervention recommendations, and ongoing monitoring of the growth and health status of



His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council
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children. The program also provides competency training in pediatric feeding and swallowing
disorders to families and community-based personnel serving children, including but not limited
to, PartC Early Intervention programs, child care providers and school based personnel.

A Request for Proposals was posted on the Department's website from March 27,2017
through June 21. 2017. The Department received one (1) proposal, which was evaluated by
topic area experts within the Depa^ent. Southeastern Regional Service Center was selected
as the winning vendor. The Sumniary Score Sheet Is attached.

The Contractor has demonstrated experience in overseeing and participating in a
Feeding & Swallowing Network and will be responsible for overseeing a network that includes
but Is not limited to Regional Feeding & Swallowing Specialists and Program Managers.

The Contractor will provide home and community assessments. Intervention
recommendations and ongoing monitoring of the growth and health status of children accepted
for services by the Feeding & Swallowing Network and Special Medical Services.

The Contractor will collaborate with other community-based agencies, including but not
limited to, the Comprehensive Nutrition Network for Children with Special Health Care fsleeds,
in order to ensure coordination of care, interagency referrals and joint training and planning for
shared clients.

Further, the Contractor will provide competency training in pediatric feeding and
swallowing disorders to families and community-based personnel sen/ing children, including
but not limited to Part C Early Intervention programs, child care providers and school based
personnel.

^ referenced in the Request for Proposals and In Exhibit C-1 of this contract, this
agreement includes the option for the Department to renew contract services for up to two (2)
additional year(s), contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding,
agreement of the parties and approval of the Governor and Executive Council.

Should Governor and Executive Council not authorize this request, families and
caregivers of up to 600 children may not receive consultations and follow up visits that assist
them to effectively manage their children's feeding and swallowing concerns.

Area served: Statewide

Source of Funds: 30% Federal Funds from US Health and Human Services. Health
Resources and Services Administration. Title V Block Grant FAIN # B04MC29353. and 70%
General Funds.



His Excellency. Governor Chrislopf>er T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council
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In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, General Funds will not
be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted.

Christine Santaniqllq
Director

Approved by;

frey ALMeyers
Commissioner

Tht D^porutienl of Htallh and Human Sen-ices'Mission is io join commtinHUs and fouiHtts
in proi iding opportuniiies for citizens to achiei f heotlh and independence.



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Office of Business Operations
Contracts & Procurement Unit

Summary Scoring Sheet

Feeding & Swallowing Network for
Children and Youth with Special
Healthcare Needs

RFP Name

RFP-2018-BDS-08-FEEDI

RFP Number

1.

Bidder Name
Pass/Fall

Maximum

Poirrts

Actual

Points

2.

Southeastern Regional Education Service Center,
^  Inc.(SERESC) 32S 296

3.

2 0 325 0
4.

3 0 325 0
5.

^ 0 325 0
6.

= 0 325 0
7.

Reviewer Names
^eirdf^unn^Sminist^^
Technical
Alicia Lesperance. Partners in
Health Program Manager •
Technical
^usan^oore^^^rograiT^^^^
Manager - Technical

Taui^undy^ediS^e^jce^^^
Technician - Cost

T'anj^Kiic^ISnes^SnTmiSralor
II - Cost



Subject: Feeding A Swallnwirg Network

FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 5/8/15)

for Children and Youth With Special Healthcare Needs (RFP-^Ql g-gC>S-0?-FE&Pl}

Notice: This agreement and all of its attachments shall become public upon submission to Governor and
Executive Council for approval. Any information that is private, confidential or proprieta^^ must
be clearly identified to the agency and agreed to in writing prior to signing the contract.

AGREEMENT

The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:
GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. IDENTIFICATION.

l.l State Agency Name
NH Department of Health and Human Services

1.2 State Agency Address
129 Pleasant Street

Concord. NH 03301-3857

1.3 Contractor Name

Southeastem Regional Education Service Center, Inc.

1.5 Contractor Phone
Number

603-206-6800

1.6 Account Number

05-95-93-930010-51910000-
562-500912

1.9 Contracting Officer for State Agency
E. Maria Reinentann. Esq., Director

Ml Con^clorSignature

1.4 Contractor Address

29 Commerce Drive
Bedford, NH 03 no

1.7 Completion Date

March 31, 2020

1.8 Price Limitation

$368,230

1.10 State Agency Telephone Number
603-271-9330

1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory

M3 Acknowledgement: State of Vy . County of A//i_is C m(.■ /y
Qp JC P - before the undersigned olTicer, personally appeared the person identified in block 1.12, or satisfactorily
Dfovcn to be the person whose name is signed ii> block 1.11, and acknowledged that sfoc e«cmed this document in the capacity
.  .-. .-j • Li-.i. I it DANIELLEM.PAULNoiaivftihaVindicated in block 1.12.
l.l 3.1 Signature ofNolaiy Public or Justice of the Peace

[Seall

~~ biateoiNawHampBhlTB
MyCon)mIsah)n&«)ire$Nov8mberta. 2020

I  13.2 Name and Title ofNolary or Justice of the Peace "
<L/C

1 lA Swt&Aeenc na

^J^^pproval by thdJ-^TVO^artn^ of Administration^ Division of Personnel (ifappUchbXe)
gy. Director, On:

e and Title of State Agency Sj^atory

1.17 Approval byihe Attorney General (Form, Substance and Execution) (if applicable)
By: (
I /]'

■jpUcable) I
^\lKr

M8 Approval by the Governor and^0^culive Counci| ^ifapptic^le.
By: ' '

Page I of 4



2. EMPLOYMENT OF CONTRACTOR/SERVICES TO
BE PERFORMED. The State of New Hampshire, acting
throogh the agency identified in block 1.1 ("State"), engages
contractor identified in block 1.3 ("Contractor") to perform,
and the Contractor shall pcrfonn, the work or sale of goods, or
both, identified and more particularly described in the attached
EXHIBIT A which is incorporated herein by reference
("Services").

3. EFFECTIVE pATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.
3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the Slate of New Hampshire, if
applici^le, this Agreement, and all obligations of the parties
hereunder, shall become effective on the date the Governor
and Executive Council approve this Agreement as Indicated in
block 1.18, uriless no such approval is required, in which case
the Agreement shall become effective on the date the
Agreement Is signed by the Stale Agency as shown in block
1.14("Effective Dale").
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
EfTcctlvc Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior
to the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not
become effective, the State shall have no liability to the
Contractor, including without limitation, any obligation to pay
the Contractor for any costs incuncd or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder, including,
without limilation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation
of funds, and In no event shall the Stale be liable for any
payments hereunder In excess of such available appropriated
funds. In the event of a reduction or termination of
appropriated funds, the Stale shall have the right to withhold
payment until such funds become available, Ifever, and shall
have the right to terminate this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such termination. The State
shall not be required to transfer funds from any other account
to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the event funds In that
Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/
PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of
payment arc identified and more particularly described in
EXHIBIT B which is incorporated herein by reference.
5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature Incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete
compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The State
shall have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract
price.

Page 2

5.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement
those liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA
80:7 through RSA 80:7'C or any other provision oflaw.
5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in
no event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually
made hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block
1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS
AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.! In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all statutes, laws, regulations,
and orders of federal, state, county or municipal authorities
which impose any obligation or duty upon the Contractor,
including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal opportunity
laws. This may include the requirement to utilize auxiliary
aids and services to ensure that persons with communication
disabilities, including vision, hearing and speech, can
communicate with, receive information from, and convey
information to the Contractor. In addition, the Contractor
shall comply with all applicable copyright laws.
6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall -
not discriminate against employees or epplicBitts for
employment because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex,
handicap, sexual orientation, or national origin and will take
afiirmative action to prevent such discrimination.
6.3 if this Agreement is funded In any part by monies of the
United Slates, the Contractor shall comply with all the
provisions of Executive Order No. 11246 ("Equal
Employment Opportunity"), as supplemented by the
regulations of the United States Department of Labor (41
C.F.R. Part 60), and with any rules, regulations and guidelines
as the State of New Hampshire or the United States Issue to
implement these regulations. The Contractor further agrees to
permit the State or United Slates access to any of the
Contractor's books, records and accounts for the purpose of
ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations and orders,
and the covenants, terms and conditions of this Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all
personnel necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor
warrants that all personnel engaged in the Services shall be
qualified to perform the Services, and shall be properly
licensed and otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable
laws.

7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months after the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire,
and shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined effort to
perform the Services to hire, any person who Is a State
employee or official, who Is materially involved in the
procurement, administration or performance of this

of 4
Contractor Initials . .

pate" V^/lSr



Agreement. This provision shall survive termination of this
Agreement.
7.3 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or
her successor, shall be the State's representative. In the event
of any dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement,
the Contracting Officer's decision shall be final for the State.

8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event ofdefault hereunder
("Event of Default"):
8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;
8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition
of this Agreement.
8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State
may take any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the
absence of a greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30)
days from the date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is
not timely remedied, terminate this Agreement, effective two
(2) days after giving the Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and suspending a!) payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice until such time as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default
shall never be paid to the Contractor;
8.2.3 set off against any other obligations the Slate may owe to
the Contractor any damages the Slate suffers by reason of any
Event of Default; and/or
8.2.4 treat the Agreement as breached and pursue any of its
remedies at law or in equity, or both.

9. DATAyACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITV/
PRESERVATION.

9.1 As used in this Agreement, the word "data" shall mean all
information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, ail studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses,
graphic representations, computer programs, computer
printouts, notes, letters, memoranda, papers, and documents,
all whether finished or unfinished.

9.2 All data and any property which has been received from
the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and
shall be returned to the Stale upon demand or upon
termination of this Agreement for any reason.
9.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.U. RSA
chapter 91'A or other existing law. Disclosure of data
requires prior written approval of the Slate.
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10. TERMINATION. In the event of an early termination of
this Agreement for any reason other than the completion ofthe
Services, the Contractor shall deliver to the Contracting
Officer, not later than fifteen (15) days after the date of
termination, a report ("Termination Report") describing in
detail ail Services performed, and the contract price earned, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject
matter, content, and number of copies of the Termination
Report shall be identical to those of any Final Report
described in the attached EXHIBIT A.

11. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE. In

the performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all
respects an independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor
an employee of the Stale. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the State or receive any benefits, workers' compensation
or other emoluments provided by the State to its employees.

12. assicnment/delegation/subcontracts.
The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior written notice and
consent of the Slate. None of the Services shall be

subcontracted by the Contractor without the prior written
notice and consent of the State.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. The Contractor shall defend,
indemnify and hold harmless the Stale, its ofilccrs and
employees, from and against any and all losses suffered by the
State, Its officers and employees, and any and all claims,
liabilities or penalties asserted against the Stale, itso^icers
and employees, by or on behalf of any person, on account of,
based or resulting firom, arising out offor which may be
claimed to arise out oO the acts or omissions of the
Contractor. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nodiing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of (he
sovereign immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby
reserved to the State. This covenant In paragraph 13 shall
survive the termination of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at Us sole expense, obtain and
maintain in force, and shall require any subcontractor or
assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the following
insurance:

14.1.1 comprehensive general liability insurance against all
claims of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts
of not less than S1,000.000per occurrence and S2,000,000
aggregate; and
14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering all
property subject to subparagraph 9.2 herein, in an amount not
less than 80% of the whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall
be on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the
State of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of
Insurance, and issued by insurers licensed in the Slate of New
Hampshire.
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14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified In block 1.9, or his or her successor, a certificatcfs)
of insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting OfficeT
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, certifjcate{s) of
insurance for all renewal(s) of insurance required under this
Agreement no later than thirty (30) days prior to the expiration
dateof each of the insurance policies. Tlw certificate(s) of
insurance and any renewals thereof shall be attached and are
incojporaied herein by reference. Each certincaie(s)of
insurance shall contain a clause requiring the insurer to
provide the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9. or his
or her successor, no less than thirty (30) days prior written
notice of cancellation or modification of the policy.

15. WORKERS'COMPENSATION.
15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees,
certifies and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with
or exempt from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281 -A
("Workers' Compensation").
15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the
requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281 -A, Contractor shall
maintain, and require any subcontractor or assignee to secure
and maintain, payment of Workers' Compensation in
connection with activities which the person proposes to
und^ake pursuant to this AgreemenL Contractor shall
furnish the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his
or her successor, proof of Workers' Compensation in the
manner described in N.H. RSA chapter 281-A and any
applicable renewat(s) thereof, which shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. The State shall not be
responsible for payment of any Workers' Compensation
premiums or for any other claim or benefit for Contractor, or
any subcontractor or employee of Contractor, which might
arise under applicable State of New Hampshire Workers'
Compensation laws in connection with the performance of the
Services under this Agreement.

16. WAIVER OF BREACH. No failure by the State to
enforce any provisions hereof after any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of its rights with regard to that Event of
Default, or any subsequent Event of Default. No express
failure to enforce any Event of Default shall be deemed a
waiver ofthe right of the State to enforce each and all of the
provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of Default
on the part of the Contractor.

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the
timcof mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United
Stales Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresses
given in blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

18. amendment. This Agreement may be amended,
waived or discharged only by an instrument in vrrlting signed
by tl)e parties hereto and only after approval of such
amendment, waiver or discharge by the Governor and
Executive Council of the Slate of New Hampshire unless no

such approval is required under the circumstances pursuant to
State law, rule or policy.

19. CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS.
This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the
laws ofthe State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective
successors end assigns. The wording used in this Agreement
is the wording chosen by the parties to express their mutual
intent, and no rule of construction shall be applied against or
in favor of any party.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement
are for reference purposes only, and the words contained
therein shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or
aid in the interpretation, construction or meaning of the
provisions of this Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional provisions set
forth in the attached EXHIBIT C arc incorporated herein by
reference.

23. SEVERABILITV. In the event any ofthe provisions of
this Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to
be contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining
provisions of this Agreement will remain in full force and
effect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may
be executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall
be deemed an original, constitutes the entire Agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
Agreements and understandings relating hereto.

Page 4 of 4
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Feeding and Swallowing Network for Children and Youth
With Special Health Care Needs

Exhibit A

Scope of Services

1. Provisions Applicable to All Services

1.1. The Contractor will submit a detailed description of the language assistance services
they will provide to persons with limited English proficiency to ensure meaningful
access to their programs and/or services within ten (10) days of the contract effective
date.

1.2. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future legislative action by the New
Hampshire General Court or federal or state court orders may have an impact on the
Services described herein, the State Agency has the right to modify Service priorities
and expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve compliance
therewith.

1.3. The Contractor shall serve children and youth, from birth through age twenty-one
(21). with special health care needs (CYSHCN) who have conditions requiring
specialty feeding and swallowing consultation.

1.4. The Contractor shall provide home or community assessments, intervention
recommendations, and ongoing monitoring of the growth and health status of
children accepted for services by the Feeding and Swallowing Network (FSN) and
Special Medical Services (SMS).

1.5. The Contractor shall ensure Feeding and Swallowing Specialists (FSS) that
comprise the FSN are available for consultation and technical assistance to all
Department community-based coordinators and clinic coordinators.

2. Scope of Services

2.1. The Contractor shall ensure the Feeding and Swallowing Network (FSN) Program
Manager:

2.1.1. Provides the Feeding and Swallowing Specialists (FSS) with support and
training Including, but not limited to:

2.1.1.1. On-the-job competency training.

2.1.1.2. Support with scheduling, designing, analyzing and documenting
swallow study reports.

2.1.1.3. On-going support to problem-solve difficult clinical situations.

2.1.1.4. Review and edit of provider documents.

2.1.2. Develops and maintains:

2.1.2.1. Educational material.

2.1.2.2. Policies and procedures.

2.1.2.3. Training material.

Southeastern ReQkiMie<kJcelion ExhibttA Contractor Imiit
Service Center. Inc. rs.,.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Feeding and Swallowing Network for Children and Youth
WHh Special Health Care Needs

Exhibit A

2.1.2.4. An evaluation plan.

2.1.3. Collaborate's with other agencies as needed.

2.1.4. Oversees the reporting process and revie\ws notes from the FSS for
completeness and accuracy.

2.1.5. Maintains the FSN network, including, but not limited to:

2.1.6. Recruits, hires, and trains new FSS.

2.1.7. Serves as FSN in uncovered areas of the State.

2.1.8. Facilitates monthly meetings with the Nutrition Network Coordinator and
the Intake Referral Coordinator to:

2.1.8.1. Review program operations.

2.1.8.2. Develop strategies to support NFS (Nutrition, Feeding and
Swallowing) team goals.

2.2. The Contractor shall ensure that FSS:

2.2.1. Contribute to Individual Family Service Plan (IFSP) development.

2.2.2. Coordinate with Family Centered Early Support and Services (FCESS).

2.2.3. Collaborate with home care nursing providers to develop Safe Eating
Plans (SEP).

2.3. The Contractor shall ensure that FSS attend meetings with school personnel for the
purpose of the following, which are not limited to:

2.3.1. Contribute to Individual Education Plans (lEPs) for CYSHCN.

2.3.2. Document necessary modifications to school meal programs.

2.4. The Contractor shall ensure intake/referral processes include, but are not limited to;

2.4.1. Receive referrals from agencies which shall include, but are not limited to;

2.4.1.1. Fatnilies.

2.4.1.2. Community agencies.

2.4.1.3. Primary or specialty care medical providers.

2.4.1.4. Family Centered Early Supports and Services.

2.4.1.5. Health Care Coordinators.

2.4.1.6. Partners in Health.

2.4.1.7. Schools and daycares.

2.4.1.8. WIC.

2.4.1.9. Head Start programs.

Soulheaitem Regional Education EicWbit A Conlraclor rnHials ̂
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N«w Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Feeding and Swaliowing Network for Children and Youth
With Special Health Care Needs

Exhibit A

2.4.2. Employ the Contractor-developed Screening Tool, and submitting the
outcome with the Special Medical Services (SMS) application.

2.4.3. Enter data as needed into The Department database as required.

2.4.4. Check health insurance statuses.

2.4.5. Ensure the Intake and Referral Coordinator revievirs cases to determine
eligibility.

2.4.6. Guide the intake process.

2.4.7. Provide referrals.

2.4.8. Assign clinical caseloads.

2.4.9. Encourage participation in the evaluation plan.

2.4.10. Supervise the activities of all professional and support personnel.

2.4.11. Assure that FSS's associated with the FSN attend FSN Program/Training
meetings.

2.5. The Contractor shall collaborate with other community-based agencies, which shall
Include but are not limited to. the Comprehensive Nutrition Network (CNN) for
Children and Youth with Special Health Care Needs (CYSHCN). In order to ensure
coordination of care, Interagency referrals, and joint training and planning for shared
clients. Community partners may include, but are not limited to:

2.5.1. Primary Care Physicians/Specialty Care Physicians.

2.5.2. Family Centered Early Support and Services.

2.5.3. School Teams.

2.5.4. Complex Feeding Team.

2.5.5. Complex Care Teams.

2.5.6. Neonatal Intensive Care Unit/Special Care Nursery Discharge planning
teams.

2.5.7. Equipment vendors.

2.5.8. Home care nursing.

2.6. The Contractor shall develop a treatment plan for each CYSHCN and family, the plan
shall Include, but is not limited to:

2.6.1. Outcome Measures.

2.6.2. Short-term measurable goals.

2.7. The Contractor shall provide competency training in pediatric feeding and swallowing
disorders to families and community-based personnel serving children including, but
not limited to: .

SouUiMslem ReglonsI EducaJion Exhibit A Cortractor Inilials<;q2a=i—
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N«w Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Feeding and Swallowing Network for Children and Youth
With Special Health Care Needs

Exhibit A

2.7.1. Part C Early Intervention programs.

2.7.2. Child care providers.

2.7.3. School based personnel.

2.8. The Contractor shall maintain office space, and provide services at locations
throughout the State, which shall Include, but are not limited to:

2.8.1. VYhole Village Family Resource Center in Plymouth.

2.8.2. Family Resource Center In Laconia.

2.8.3. Androscoggin Valley Hospital In Berlin.

2.8.4. Gorham Learning Center in Gorham.

'2.8.5. Cedarcrest Center In Keene..

2.8.6. Richie McFarland Children's Center in SIralham.

2.8.7. Community Partners of Strafford County in Rochester.

3. Staffing

3.1. The Contractor shall maintain a staff including, but not limited to:

3.1.1. One(1) full-time or full-time equivalent FSN Program manager.

3.1.2. Six (6) full-time or part-time FSS.

3.1.3. One futMime or part-time Program Assistant.

3.2. The Contractor shall notify the Department In writing no less than one (1) week prior
to the start date of a new Feeding and Swallowing Specialist in the program. New
ernployee information will include, but Is not limited to:

3.2.1. Full name, including middle Initial.

3.2.2. Start date.

3.2.3. Resume.

3.2.4. Telephone number.

3.2.5. Email address.

3.3. The Contractor shall recruit in the event of a vacancy in any of the staff positions.

3.4. The Contractor shall make a request In writing to the Department before hiring new
program personnel that do not meet the required staff qualifications. A waiver may
be granted based on the need of the program and/or the individual's experience and
education.

3.5. The Contractor shall ensure that all health professionals obtain and maintain a
National Provider Identification (NPl) number and credentialing with the Council for
Affordable Quality Healthcare (CAQH) when required for billing.

Southeaslem Regional Education Exhibit A Contractor initial
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Feeding and Swallowing Network for Children and Youth
With Special Health Care Needs

Exhibit A

3.6. The Contractor shall ensure all FSS provide documentation of:

3.6.1. Appropriate New Hampshire llcensure consistent with their clinical
preparation.

3.6.2. A Bachelor's degree in a health-related field, or a Master's degree in
speech and language therapy or occupational therapy.

3.6.3. Professional liability insurance.

3.7. The Contractor shall ensure all FSS have:

3.7.1. Knowledge and understanding of anatomy and physiology of the normal
swallowing reflex, and how this automatic activity may be impaired or
diminished in children with disabilities.

3.7.2. Knowledge of normal growth and development.

3.7.3. Knowledge of federal and/or state legislation regarding service provisions
to children with disabilities.

3.7.4. Knowledge of the education and/or consultative processes.

3.7.5. The ability to organize work, analyze problems and recommend/implement
solutions.

3.7.6. The ability to establish and maintain cooperative working relationships with
medical, educational, and allied health service providers.

4. Reporting

4.1. The Contractor shall provide monthly reports using the Department's database or
template, which shall Include, but are not limited to:

4.1.1. The undupllcated number and demographic characteristics of each client
receiving services, and insurance status.

4.1.2. Any problems, obstacles, or hindrances experienced during the previous
month with a plan to address the problems, obstacles, or hindrances in the
following month.

4.2. The Contractor shall provide annual reports using the Department's database or
template, which shall include, but are not limited to:

4.2.1. Quality assurance activities.

4.2.2. Progress made and efforts undertaken to meet goals and objectives for
each activity or service funded in quantitative terms, Including statistical
measures for evaluating successful outcomes.

4.2.3. Overall progress toward program goals and supporting statistical
information.

4.2.4. program effectiveness.

Southeawem Regiolrwl Education Exhibit A Contractor Inllla^
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Feeding and Swallowing Network for Children and Youth
With Special Health Care Needs

Exhibit A

4.2.5. Future plans or goals.

4.2.6. Third-party reimbursement funding and progress toward greater financial
independence.

4.3. The Contractor shali ensure that all applicable data is entered in a timely manner into
the SMS Database system. Additional information may be requested by the
Department at any time during the contract period.

5. Billing and Sustalnability

5.1. The Contractor shall coordinate a system integrating public and private funding to
sustain the availability of specialized feeding and swallowing services to CYSHCN
throughout the State which includes, but Is not limited to:

5.1.1. Develop and maintain relationships with third-party insurance payers and
public health funders.

5.1.2. Develop a system to negotiate and secure reimbursements for feeding and
swallowing services, and serve as the paymaster for ttie established
network of community-based providers' fee-for-service and training
activities.

6. Information Security Requirements

6.1. The Contractor shall^sign and comply with any and all system access policies and
procedures, systems access forms, and computer use agreements as part of
obtaining arrd maintaining access to any Department system. This will l>e completed
prior to system access being authorized, and on a regular basis as requested by the
Department.

6.2. The Contractor shall maintain proper security and privacy controls on its systems
used to connect to the New Hampshire State network and systems according to
applicable federal, state, and local regulations and aligned with industry standards
and best practices Including, but not limited to CMS Federal regulations,
HIPAA/HITECH, and RSA 359c.

6.3. The Contractor shall ensure the safe and secure management of vulnerabilities
through recurring practice of identifying, classifying, remediating, and mitigating
threats..

6.4. The Contractor shall develop, maintain, and follow procedures to ensure that data is
protected throughout its entire information lifecycle, where applicable, (from creation,
transformation, use. storage and secure destruction) regardless of the media used to
store the data (i.e.. tape. disk, paper, etc.).

6.5. The Contractor shali provide to the Department, on an annual basis, a written
attestation of HIPAA security compliance, which will demonstrate proper operational
security and privacy controls, policies, and procedures are in place and maintained
within their organization and any applicable sut)-contractors.

Southeastern Regional Education ExNbil A Contractor [nmsT^^ —
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Feeding and Swallowing Network for Children and Youth
With Special Health Care Needs

Exhibit A

6.6. The Contractor shall provide a docunrtented process for securely disposing of data,
data storage hardware, and or media; aryj will obtain written certification for any
Department data destroyed by the Contractor or any subcontractors as a part of
ongoing, emergency, and or disaster recovery operations.

6.7. The Contractor shall render electronic media containing Department data
unrecoverable when no longer in use via a secure wipe program in accordance with
industry-accepted standards for secure deletion, or otherwise physically destroying
the media (for example, degaussing).

6.8. The Contractor shall ensure that any third-party service providers he may use to
create, collect, access, transmit, or store data pertaining to State of New Hampshire
information or programs is in compliance with the information Security Requirements
of this Contract.

7. Performance Measures

7.1. The Contractor shall ensure that following performance indicators are annually
achieved and monitored monthly to measure the effectiveness of the contract;

7.1.1. A network of feeding and swallowing providers numbering no less than six
(6) will visit clients in all ten (10) New Hampshire counties.

7.1.2. A minimum of one thousand and one hundred (1,100) visits will be
conducted by feeding and swallowing providers during each State Fiscal
Year (SPY).

7.1.3.. A minimum of one hundred (100) swallow studies will be completed.

7.1.4. Client family satisfaction surveys will be distributed to all participating
families and a satisfaction rate of 80% will be achieved.

7.1.5. Individual treatment plans will be developed for 100% of the CYSHSN.

7.2. Quarterly, the Contractor shall develop and submit to the Department, a corrective
action plan for any performance measure that was not achieved.

8. Deliverables

8.1. The Contractor shall submit a bill for services for 100% of feeding and swallowing
encounters by feeding and swallowing professional, to a private insurance company,
a managed care organization (MCO), or to New Hampshire Medicaid, as is
applicable to the services provided.

8.2. The Contractor shall document progress towards outcome measures for each client
In the NFS program at each visit.

8.3. The Contractor shall analyze results of each swallow study conducted, and provide
relevant follow-up consultation to families of CYSHSN.

Soulheastem Regiofwl Educalloo Exhibit A Conlfaclof Initials
Service Center. Inc. _ ^(^/(Y
RFP.2O1&-BOS-O0-FEeOI Page 7 of 8 [ (' ̂



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Feeding and Swallovdng Network for Children and Youth
WHh Special Health Care Needs

Exhibit A

8.4. The Contractor shall ensure that all necessary medical management and
accommodations are provided for CYSHSN, to allow for safe eating and drinking at
home, day care, and school.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Sen^lces
Feeding and Swallowing Network for Children and Youth
With Special Health Care Needs

ExhIbU B

Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment

1. The State shall pay the contractor an amount not to exceed the Form P-37. General Provisions. Block 1.8,
Price Limitation for the services provided by the Contractor pursuant to Exhibit A, Scope of Services.

2. This contract is funded with funds from U.S. Department of Health and Human Services. Maternal and Child
Health Services Title V Block Grant. CFDA #93.994. i

3. The Contractor agrees to provide the services in Exhibit A, Scope of Services in compliance with funding
requirements. Failure to meet the scope of services may jeopardize the funded contractor's current and/or
future funding.

4. Payment for said services shall be made monthly as follows;
4.1. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement baste for actual expenditures incurred In the fulfillment of

this agreement, and shall be in accordance with the approved line item as shown in Exhibit B-1. Exhibit
B-2 and Exhibit B-3.

4.2. The Contractor shall submit an invoice in a form satisfactory to the State by the twentieth {20 ) working
day of each month, which identifies and requests reimbursement for authorized expenses incurred in
the prior month. The invoice must be completed, signed, dated and returned to the Department In
order to initiate payment.

4.3. The final invoice shall be due to the State no later than forty (40) days after the contract Form P-37,
Block 1.7 Completion Date.

4.4. In lieu of hard copies, alt Invoices may be assigned an electronic signature and emailed to
Robin.Hlobeczy@dhhs.nh.gov, or Invoices may be mailed to:

Department of Health and Human Services
Special Medical Services Section
129 Pleasant Street. Thayer Building
Concord. NH 03301

4.5. Payments may be withheld pending receipt of required reports or documentation as identified in Exhibit
A, Scope of Services and in this Exhibit 8.

5. The Contractor shall keep detailed records of their activities related to Department of Health and Human
Services'-funded programs and services.

6 Notwithstanding paragraph 18 of the General Provisions P-37. changes limited to adjusting amoimls between
budget line items, related items, amendments of related budget exhibits within the price ^
adjusting encumbrances between State Fiscal Years, may be made by written agreement of both parties and
may be made without obtaining approval of the Governor and Executive Council.

Southeastern Regional Education
Service Center, Inc.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit C

SPECIAL PROVISIONS

Conlraclors Obligations; The Contractor covenants and agrees that ail funds received by the Contractor
under the Contract shall be used only as payment to the Contractor for services provided to eligible
individuals and, in the furtherance of the aforesaid covenants, the Contractor hereby covenants and
agrees as follows:

1. Compliance with Federal and State Laws: If the Contractor Is permitted to determine the eligibility
of Individuals such eligibility determination shall be made in accordance with applicable federal and
state laws, regulations, orders, guidelines, policies and procedures.

2. Time and Manner of Determination: Eligibility determinations shall be rnade on forms provided by
the Department for that purpose and shall be made and remade at such times as are prescribed by
the Department.

3. Documentation: In addition to the determination forms required by the Department, the Contractor
shall maintain a data file on each recipient of services hereunder. which file shall include all
information necessary to support an eligibility determination and such other information as the
Department requests. The Contractor shall furnish the Department with all forms and documentation
regarding eligibility determinations that the Department may request or require.

4. Fair Hearings: The Contractor understands that all applicants for services hereunder. as well as
individuals declared Ineligible have a right to a fair hearing regarding that determination. The
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that all applicants for services shall be permitted to fill out
an application form and that each applicant or re-applicant shall be Informed of his/her right to a fair
hearing In accordance with Department regulations.

5. Gratuities or Kickbacks: The Contractor agrees that It is a breach of this Contract to accept or
make a parent, graturty or offer of employmeni oh behalf of the Contractor, any Sub-Contractor or
the State In order to influence the performance of the Scope of Work detailed in Exhibit A of this
Contract. The Stale may terminate this Contract ar>d any sub-contract or sub-agreement if it Is
determined that payments, gratuities or offers of employmeni of any kind were offered or received by
any officials, officers, employees or agents of the Contractor or Sub-Contractor.

6. Retroactive Payments: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract or in any
other document, contract or understanding. It is expressly understood and agreed by the parties
hereto, that no payments will be made hereunder to reimburse the Contractor for costs incurred for
any purpose or for any services provided to any individual prior to the Effective Dale of the Contract
and no payments shall be made for expenses incurred by the Conlraclor for any services provided
prior to the date on which the individual applies for services or (except as otherwise provided by the
federal regulations) prior to a determination that the individual is eligible for such services.

7. . Conditions of Purchase: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract, nothing
herein contained shall be deemed to obligate or require the Department to purchase services
hereunder at a rate which reimburses the Contractor in excess of the Contractors costs, at a rale
which exceeds the amounts reasonable and necessary to assure the quality of such service, or at a
rate which exceeds the rate charged by the Contractor to ineligible Individuals or other third party
funders for such service. If at any time during the term of this Contract or after receipt of the Final
Expenditure Report hereunder, the Department shall determine that the Contractor has used
payments hereunder to reimburse Items of expense other than such costs, or has received payment
in excess of such costs or in excess of such rates charged by the Contractor to Ineligible Individuals
or other third party funders. the Department may elect to: u •
7.1. Renegotiate the rales for payment hereunder. in which event new rates shall be established;
7.2. Deduct from any future payment to the Conlraclor the amount of any prior reimbursement in

excess of costs: ^

Exhibil C - special Provisions Contraclor inillal^.AN^
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
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7.3. Demand repayment of the excess payment by the Contractor in which event failure to make
such repayment shall constitute an Event of Default hereunder. When the Contractor is
permitted to determine the eligibility of individuals for services, the Contractor agrees to
reimburse the Department for ell funds peW by the Department to the Contractor for services
provided to any individual who is found by the Department to be ineligible for such services at
any time during the period of retention of records established herein.

RECORDS: MAINTENANCE. RETENTION. AUDIT. DISCLOSURE AND CONFIDENTIALITY:

8. Maintenance of Records: In addition to the eligibility records specrTied above, the Contractor
covenants and agrees to maintain the following records during the Contract Period: ..
8.1. Fiscal Records: books, records, documents and other data evidencing and reflecting all costs

and other expenses incurred by the Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all
income received or collected by the Contractor during the Contract Period, said records to be
maintained in accordance with accounting procedures and practices which sufficientty and
properly reflect all such costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, and
to include, vwlhoul limrtation, all ledgers, books, records, and original evidence of costs such as
purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers, requisitions for materials, inventories, valuations of
in-kind contributions, labor llme cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required by the

'■ Department;
8.2. Statistical Records: Statistical, enrollment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of

services during the Contract Period, which records shall include all records of application and
eligibility (including all forms required to determine eligibility for each such recipient), rewrds
regarding the provision of services and all invoices submitted to the Department to obtain
payment for such services.

8.3. Medical Records: Where appropriate and as prescribed by the Department regutattons. the
Contractor shall retain medical records on each patient/recipient of services.

9 Audit; Contractor shall submit an annual audit to the Department within 60 days after the close of the
agency fiscal year. It Is recommended that the report be prepared in accordance with the provision of
Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133. "Audits of Slates. Local Governments, and Non
Profit Organizations" and the provisions of Standards for Audit of Governmental Organizations.
Programs. Aclivllies and Functtons. issued by the US General Accounting Office (GAG standards) as
they pertain to financial compliance audits.
9 1 Audit and Review: During the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder. the

Department, the United Stales Department of Health and Human Services, and any of their
designated representatives shall have access to all reports and records maintained pursuant to
the Contract for purposes of audit, examination, excerpts and transcripts.

9 2. Audit Liabilities: In addition to and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the Contract, it is
understood and agreed by the Contractor that the Contractor shall be held liable for any state
or federal audit exceptions and shall return to the Department, all payments made under the
Contract to which exception has been taken or which have been disallowed because of such an
exception.

10. Confidentiality of Records: All information, reports, and records maintained hereunder or collected
In connection with the performance of the services and the Contract shall be confidential and shall not
be disclosed by the Contractor, provided however, that pursuant to state laws end the regulations of
the Department regarding the use and disclosure of such information, disclosure may be made to
public officials requiring such information In connection with their official duties and for purposes
directly connected to the adminlstralion of the services and the Contract; and provided further, that
the use or disclosure by any party of any Information concerning a recipient for any purpose not
directly connected with the administration of the Department or the Contractor's responsibilities with
respect to purchased services hereunder is prohibited except on written consent of the recipienL his
attorney or guardian.

Exhibit C - special Provisiohs Comractof Iniliab
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Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein the covenants and conditions contained in
the Paragraph shall survive the termination of the Contract for any reason whatsoever.

11. Reports; Fiscal and Statistical: The Contractor agrees to submit the following reports at the following
times if requested by the Department.
11.1. Interim Financial Reports: Written interim financial reports containing a detailed descnption of

all costs and non-allowable expenses incurred by the Contractor to the date of the report and
containing such other information as shall be deemed satisfactory by the Department to
justify the rate of payment hereunder. Such Financial Reports shall be submitted on the form
designated by the O^artment or deemed satisfactory by the Department.

11.2. Final Report: A final report shall be submitted within thirty (30) days after the end of the term
of this Contract. The Final Report shall be In a form satisfactory to the Department and shall
contain a summary staterr>ent of progress toward goals and objectives stated in the Proposal
and other information required by the Department.

12. Completion of Services: Disallowance of Costs: Upon the purchase by the Department of the
maximum number of units provided for in the Contract and upon payment of the price limitation
hereunder. the Contract and all the obligations of the parties hereunder (except such obligations as.
by the terms of the Contract are to be performed after the end of the term of this Contract and/or
survive the termination of the Contract) shall terminate, provided however, that if. upon review of the
Final Expenditure Report the Department shall disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractor as
costs hereunder the Department shall retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such
expenses as are disallov^d or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

13. Credits: All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other materials prepared
during or resulting from the performance of the services of the Contract shall include the following
statement: /n . u
13.1. The preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under a Contract with the State

of New Hampshire. Department of Health and Human Services, with funds provided in part
by the State of New Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or
required, e.g.. the United Stales Department of Health and Human Services.

14. Prior Approval and Copyright Ownership: All materials (written, video, audio) produced or
purchased under the contract shall have prior approval from DHHS before printing, production,
distribution or use. The DHHS will retain copyright ownership for any and all original materials
produced, including, but not limited to. brochures, resource directories, protocols or guidelines,
posters, or reports. Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the contract without
prior written approval from DHHS.

15. Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations: In the operation of any facilities
for providing services, the Contractor shall comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal,
state, county and municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public Officer or officers
pursuant to laws which shall impose an order or duty upon the contractor with respect to the
operation of the facility or the provision of the services at such facility. If any governmental license or
permit shall be required for the operation of the said facility or the performance of the said services,
the Contractor will procure said license or permit, and will at all times comply with the terms and
conditions of each such license or permit. In connection with the foregoing requirements, the
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that, during the term of this Contract the facilities shall
comply with all rules, orders, regulations, and requlremenls of the State Office of the Fire Marshal and
the local fire protection agency, and shall be in conformance with local building and zoning codes, by
laws and regulations.

16. Equal Employment Opportunity Plan (EEOP): The Cortfactor will provide an Equal Employment
Opportunity Plan (EEOP) to the Office for Civil Rights. Office of Justice Programs (OCR), if it has
received a single award of $500,000 or more. If the recipient receives $25,000 or more end has 50 or

Exhibit C-Special Provisions Conbactof Iniiiels ̂

oe/ar/u Page 3 of 5 Date m



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit C

more employees, it will maintain a current EEOP on file and submll an EEOP Certtfication Form to the
OCR. certifying that Its EEOP Is on file. For recipients receiving less than $25,000, or public grantees
wHh fewer than 50 employees, regardless of the amount of the award, the recipient will provide an
EEOP Certification Form to the OCR certifying it is not required to submit or maintain an EEOP. Non
profit organizations. Indian Tribes, and medical and educational institutions arc exempt from the
EEOP requirement, but are required to submll a certification form to the OCR to claim the exemption.
EEOP Certification Forms are available at: http:/Avww.ojp.usdoj/about/ocr/pdfs/cert.pdf.

17. Limited English Proficiency (LEP): As clartfied by Executive Order 13166, Improving Access to
Services for persons with Limited English Proficiency, and resulting agency guidance, national origin
discrimination includes discrimination on the basis of limited English proficiency (LEP). To ensure
compliance with the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 and Title VI of the Civil
Rights Act of 1964. Contractors must take reasonable steps to ensure that LEP persons have
meaningfui access to its programs.

18. Pilot Program for Enhancement of Contractor Employee Whistleblower Protections: The
following shall apply to all contracts that exceed the Simplified Acquisition Threshold as defined in 48
CFR 2.101 (currently. $150,000)

Contractor Employee Whistleblower Rights and Requirement To Inform Employees of
Whistleblower Rights (SEP 2013)

(a) This contract and employees working on this contract will be subject to whistleblower rights
and remedies in the pilot program on Contractor employee whistleblower protections established at
41 U.S.C. 4712 by section 828 of the National Defense Authorization Act for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L.
112-239) and FAR 3.90B.

(b) The Contractor shall inform its employees in writing, in the predominant language of the workforce,
of employee whistleblower rights and protections under 41 U.S.C. 4712. as describe in section
3.908 of the Federal Acquisition Regulation.

(c) The Contractor shall insert the substance of this clause, including this paragraph (c). in all
subcontracts over the eimpllfied acquisition threshold.

19. Subcontractors: DHHS recognizes that the Contractor may choose to use subcontractors vwth
greater expertise to perform certain health care services or functions for efficiency or convenience,
but the Contractor shall retain the responsibility and accountability for the function(s). Prior to
subcontracting, the Contractor shall evaluate the subcontractor's.ability to perform the delegated
funclion(s). This is accomplished through a written agreement that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities of the subcontractor and provides for revoking the delegation or imposing sanctions if
the subcontractoj's performance is not adequate. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual
condKions as the Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor compliance
with those conditions.
When the Contractor delegates a function to a subcontractor, the Contractor shall do the following:
19.1. Evaluate the prospective subcontractor's ability to perform the activities, before delegating

the function

19.2. Have a written agreement with the subcontractor that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities and how sanctions/revocation will be managed If the subcontractor's
performance is not adequate

19.3. Monitor the subcontractor's performance on an ongoing basis

oviin*
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19.4. Provide to OHHS an annual schedule identifying ail subcontractors, delegated functions and
responsibilities, and when the subcontractor's performance will be reviewed

19.5. OHHS shall, at its discretion, review and approve ail subcontracts.

If the Contractor identifies deficiencies or areas for improvement are identified, the Contractor shall
take corrective action.

DEFINITIONS . , .
As used In the Contract, the following terms shall have the following meanings.

COSTS: Shall mean those direct and Indirect items of expense determined by the Oep^ment to be
allowable and reimbursable In accordance with cost and accounting principles established in accordance
wHh state and federal laws, regulations, rules and orders.

DEPARTMENT: NH Department of Health and Human Services.

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT GUIDELINES; Shall mean that section of the Contractor Manual which is
entitled Tinancial Managerhent GuWelines" and which contains the regulations governing the financial
activities of contractor agencies which have contracted with the State of NH to receive funds.

PROPOSAL: If applicable, shall mean the document submitted by the Contractor on a form or forms
required by the Department and containing a description of the Services to be provided to
Individuals by the Contractor in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Contract and setting forth
the total cost and sources of revenue for each service to be provided under the Contract.

UNIT- For each service that the Contractor is to provide to eligible individuals bereunder.
period of time or that specified activity determined by the Department and specified in Exhibit B of the
Contract.

FEDERAL/STATE LAW: Wherever federal or state laws, regulations, rules, orders, and policies, etc. are
referred to in the Contract, the said reference shall be deemed to mean all such laws, regulations, etc. as
they may be amended or revised from the lime to time.

CONTRACTOR MANUAL: Shall mean that document prepared by the NH Department of Administrative
Services containing a compilation of all regulations promulgated pursuant to ̂ ^^®New Hampshire
Administrative Procedures Act. NH RSA Oh 541-A, for the purpose of implementing State of NH and
federal regulations promulgated thereunder.

SUPPLANTING OTHER FEDERAL FUNDS: The Contr^lor guarantees that funds provided under this
Contract will not supplant any existing federal funds available for these services.

niOalsGxNbli C - Special Pccvfeions Coniraclor InWals i—^—j-
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REVISIONS TO GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. Subparagraph 4 of the General Provisions of this contract. Conditional Nature of Agreement, Is
repl^d as follows:
4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT. . . < w o

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, ail obligations of the State
hereunder. including without limitation, the continuance of payments. In whole or In part,
under this Agreement are contingent upon continued epproprlrtlon or availability of funds,
Including any subsequent changes to the appropriation or availability of furxJs affected by
any state or federal legislative or executive action that reduces, eliminates, or otherwise
modifies the appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement and the Scope of
Services provided in Exhibit A. Scope of Services, in whole or in part. In no event shall the
State be liable for any payments hereunder in excess of appropriated or available funds. In
the event of a reduction, termination or modificalton of appropriated or available funds, the
State shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds become available, if ever. The
State shall have the right to reduce, terminate or modify services under this Agreernent
immediately upon giving the Contractor notice of such reduction, termination or modification.
The State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other source or account into the
Account(8) identified in block 1.6 of the General Provisions, Account Number, or any other
account, in the event funds are reduced or unavailable.

2. Subparagraph 10 of the General Provisions of this contract, Termination, is amended by adding the
fotiowing language:

10.1 The Slate may terminate the Agreement at any time for any reason, at the sole discretion of
the State, 30 days after giving the Contractor written notice that the State Is exercising its
option to terminate the Agreement.

102 In the event of early termination, the Contractor shall, wrthin 15 days of notice of early
termination, develop and submit to the Stale a Transition Plan for services under the
Agreement. Includir>g but not limited to. Identifying the present and future needs of clients
receiving services under the /'^reemenl and establishes a process to meet those needs.

10.3 The Contractor shall fully cooperate with the State and shall promptly provide detailed
Information to support the Transition Plan Including, but not limited to. any information or
data requested by the State related to the termination of the Agreement and Transition Plan
and shall provide ongoing communication and revisions of the Transition Plan to the State as
requested.

10 4 In the event that services under the Agreement, including but not limited to clients receiving
services under the Agreement are transitioned to having services delivered by another entity
including contracted providers or the State, the Contractor shall provide a process for
uninterrupted delivery of services in the Transition Plan.

10.5 The Contractor shall establish a method of notifying clients and other affected individu^s
about the transition. The Contractor shall include the proposed communications in tts
Transition Plan submitted to the State as described above.

3  The Division reserves the right to renew the Contract for up to two (2) additional years, subject to
the continued availability of funds, satisfactory performance of services and approval by the
Governor end Executive Council.

Exhibit C-1 - Revisions to Standard Provisions Contractor initials
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING PRUQ-fREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees ^
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Ad of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690. TiH® V. S"Witle D^l
use. 701 et seq.), and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections
1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

ALTERNATIVE I - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

This certification is required by the regulations Implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free
Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100^0. Title V. Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.). Tl^ Jarjua^ 31.
1989 regulations were amended and published as Part II of the May 25.1990 Federal f^egister (pages
21681-21691). and require certificalion by grantees (and by Inference, sub-grantees
contractors), prior to award, that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017 63CKc) of the
regulatioo provides that a grantee (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors) that is a State
mav elect to make one certification to the Department in each federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for
each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification. The certificate set out below is a
material representation of fact upon which reliance Is placed when the agency awards the grant. False
certification or eolation of the certification shall be grounds for suspension of paymerits. suspension or
termination of grants, or government wide suspension or dcbarment. Contractors using this form should
send it to:

Commissioner

NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street.
Concord. NH 03301-6505

1. The grantee certifies that it will or vdl continue to provide a drug-free workplace by.
1.1 Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufadure, dtstril>ution,

dispensing possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the grantee's
workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such
prohibition; . , , »

1.2. Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about
1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;
1.2.2. The grantee's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;
1.2.3. Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employea assistance programs; and
1 !2.4. The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations

occurring In the workplace; fn. »u
1.3. Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged In the performance of the grant be

given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);
1.4. Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of

employment under the grant, the employee will
1.4.1. Abide by the terms of the statement: and . . u
1.4.2. Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug

statute occurring In the workplace no later than five calendar days after such
conviction;

1.5. Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under,
subparagraph 1.4.2 from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice. Including position title, to every grant
officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless the Federal agency

ExhiWl D - CenifttsUon regareJlng Drug Free Contraclof Inlila
Workplace Requlremenls
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has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall Include the
identification number(8) of each affected grant;

1.6. Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2. with respect to any employee who is so convicted
1.6.1. Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and Including

termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973. as
amended; or

1.6.2. Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such puqaoses by a Federal. State, or local health,
law enforcement, or other appropriate agency;

1.7. Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free Nvorkpiace through
implementalion of paragraphs 1.1.1.2.1.3.1.4,1.5, and 1.6.

2. The grantee may insert in the space provided below the site(s) for the performance of work done In
connection with the specific grant.

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, state, zip code) (list each location)

Check □ if there are workplaces on file that are not Identified here.

Contractor Name:

Date Name: Paul tfr 6^^*^

GxhWl 0 - Certiricstlon re^fUin® Drug Free ConifWlor WU
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The Contractor identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Section 319 of Public Law 101-121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbing, and
31 U.S.C. 1352, and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.
and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Programs (indicate applicable program covered); ,
•Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Title IV-A
•Child Support Enforcement Program under Title IV-D
•Social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX
'Medicaid Program under Title XIX
•Community Services Block Grant under Title VI
•Child Care Development Block Grant under Title IV

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that;

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on l)ehalf of the undersigried, to
any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member
of Congress an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in
connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment or
modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention
sub-grantee or sub-contractor).

2  If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a fitember of Congress in connection with this
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mentis sub-grantee or sub
contractor). the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, ,.
Report Lobbying, in accordance with Ks instructions, attached and identified es Standard Exhibit E-l.)

3  The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included In the award
document for sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under gran s.
loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall cerirfy and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this trarisaclion
was made or entered inlo. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this
transaction Imposed by Section 1352, Title 31. U.S. Code. Any person v^o fails to file «qu^
certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for
each such failure.

Contractor Name:

V  .. ^
Qate ' Name> Pa-u*-

CKGCUTi ^

•^-(h
civoHHsmoTu

EkNWI E - Certification Regarding Lobbying Contractor Inltiab ̂  —.
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CeRTIFiCATIQN REQARDINQ DEBARMENT. SUSPENSION
AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Contractor identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to compiy with the provisions of
Executive Office of the President. Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debarment.
Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's
representaUve, as Identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the foiiowing
Certification:

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant Is providing the
certification set out below.

2. The Inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result in denial
of participation In this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shall submit an
explanation of why It cannot provide the certification. The certification or explanation will be
considered In connection with the NH Department of Health and Human Services' (DHHS)
determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary
participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person from participation in
this transaction.

3. The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
when DHHS determined to enter into this transaction. If it is later determined that the prospwtive
primary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certlficalion. in addition to other remedies
available to the Federal Government. DHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

4. The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the DHHS agency to
whom this proposal (contract) is submitted if at any time the prospective primary participant learns
that its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances.

5. The terms 'covered transaction." "debarred." "suspended." "ineligible." 'lower tier covered
transaction." "participant." "person." "primary covered transaction." 'principal," 'proposal.' and
'voluntarily excluded," as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and
Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Part 76. See the
attached definitions.

6. The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that, should the
proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered
transaction with a person who Is debarred, suspended, declared ineligibie. or voluntarily excluded
from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by DHHS.

7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include the
clause titled "Certification Regarding Debarment. Suspension." Ineligibilily and Voluntary Exclusion -
Lower Tier Covered Transactions." provided by DHHS. without modification. In all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

8. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a
lower tier covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily excluded
from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification Is erroneous. A participanl may
decide the method and frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each
participant may, Ixit is not required to. check the Nonprocurement List (of excluded parties).

9. Nothing contained In the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records
in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and ^ '

Exhibit F - CortiScatlon Regarding Oebarmeni, Suspension Contractor irstials
And Other ResponslWtiiy Mabers "0 | a,/ (C
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit F

intomation ot a participant is not required to exceed that which is normaliy possessed by a prudent
person in Ihe ordinary course of business dealings.

10. Except for transactions autlxwized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant m a
covered transaction knowingly enters into a tower tier covered transaction with a person ̂ o is
suspended debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation m this transattion. in
addition to other remedies available to the Federal government. DHHS may terminate this transaction
for cause or default.

Ttw prwp^ certifies to the best of Its knowledge and belief, that it and its
I iT'^^are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment. declared ineligible, or

voluntarlty excluded from covered transactions by any Federal departrnent or ssenqf.
II 2 have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) wmncted of or had
" a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal <f ense in

connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal. State ̂
transaction or a contract under a public transaction; violatwn of Federal or State antrtrust
statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction ofrecords, making false statements, or receiving stolen prope^;,

113 are not presently indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental ©"Jly
(Federal." State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (t)(b)

11 4 have^ncrt a"three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more publictransactions (Federal. State or local) terminated for cause or default.

12 Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the .
' certificatton. such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).
LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS

13 By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospectiw Iwer '
■ defmif in 45 CFR Part 76. certifies to the best of Its knowledge and belief P""^'P®'®"
131 are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment. dedar^ « Laencv

voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal department or agency.
13 2 where the prospective lower tier participanl is unable to certify to any of the above, such

prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

14 The prospective lower tier participanl further agrees by submitting this pr^sal It will
include this clause entitled 'Certificalion Regarding Debarment. Suspension. Ineligibility, end
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions," without modification in all lower tier covered
transactions and In all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

Contractor Name;

Dale
Title:

NameT

cuohhS/hoio Page 2 of 2
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Seivlces
Exhibit G

VWISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified In Sections 1.11 and 1.12oflhe General Provisions, to execute the following
certificdtion:

Contractor will comply, and will require any subgranteas or subcontractors to compiy, with any appiicable
federal nondiscrimlnatlon requirements, which may include:

- the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. Section 37a9d) which prohibits
recipients of federal funding under this statute from discriminating. eHher in employment practices w in
the delivery of services or benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act
requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity Plan;
- the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts by
reference the civil rights obligations of the Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal funding under this
statute are prohibited from discriminating, either in employment practices or in the delivery of seiyices or
bet^efrts. on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act includes Equal
Employment Opportunity Plan requirements:

- the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d. which prohibits recipients of federal finanpia'
assistance from discriminating on the basis of race, color, or national origin in any program or activity);

" - the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 LI.S.C. Section 794). which prohibits recipients of Federal rmancial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of disability, in regard to employment and the delivery of
services or benefits. In any program or activity;

- the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990(42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34). which prohibits ., ,
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity for persons with disabilities In employment. State and local
government services, public accommodations, commercial facilities, and transportation:
- the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681.1683.1685-86). which prohibits
discrimination on the basis of sex in federally assisted education programs.

. the Ane Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106.07), which prohibits discrimin^on on the
basis of age In pr^rams or activities receiving Federal financial assistance. It does not include
employment discrimination:

- 28 C F.R. pt. 31 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - OJJDP Grant Programs); 28 C.F.R. pt. 42
(U S Department of Justice Regulations - Nondiscriminafion: Equal Employment Opportunity; Policies
and Procedures); Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the laws for faith-based and c^munity
organizations); Executive Order No. 13559. which provide fundamental principles and policy-making
criteria for partnerships with faith-based and neighborhood organizations;

- 28 C F R ot. 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
Organizations); and Whistleblower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and
Act (NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. 1.112-239. enacted January 2. 2013) the Pilot Program for
Enhancement of Contract Employee Whistleblower Protections, which protects employe^ against
reprisal for certain whistle blowing activities In connection with federal grants and contracts.

The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is pla^ when the
agency awards the grant. False certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for
suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or government wide suspension or
debarment.

OMtAlOA d p«toWno lo F»«or« HondoalnwooA. 6 T7t«t«en» «r OflwiaWw
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Nftw Hampshlfo Department of Health and Human Services
^  Exhibit Q

In the ewnt a Federal or State court or Federal or State administrative agency makes a finding of
discrimination after a due process hearing on the grounds of raw. color,
against a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the ftndrng to
the applicable contracting agency or division within the Department of Health and Human Services, and
to the Department of Health and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman.

The Contractor Identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by
representative as identified in Sections 1,11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification;

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Contractor agrees to comply with the provisiohs
indicated above.

Contractor Name:

b/g-Z/Sr
Date Name:

Title:

Exhibil G ....
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit H

CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SWPKE

Public Law 103-227, Part C • Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of 19W
(Act), requires that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any indoor facility owned or leased or
contracted for by an entity and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care, education,
or library services to children under the age of 18, if the senrices are funded by Federal programs either
directly or through State or local governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The
law does not apply to children's services provided in private residences, facilities funded solely by
Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portions of facilities used for inpatient drug or alcohol treatment. Failure
to comply with the provisions of the law may result in the imposition of a civil monetary pefiaSy of up to
$1000 per day and/or the imposition of an administralive compliance order on the responsible entity.

The Contractor identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by sigrwture of the Contractor's
representative as Identified In Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

1. By signing and submitting this contract, the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply
with all applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227, Part C, known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994,

Contractor Name:

-

Dat? I f Name: pAUL
Title:

ClVDHHS/110713

EichibilH-Certjiication Regarding Contraclcx InUli _
Envlronrnenlal Tobacco Smoke
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit I

HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABLITY ACT
BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

the Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act. Public Law 104-191 and
with the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health Information, 45
CFR Parts 160 and 164 applicable to business associates. As defined herein, 'Business
Associate" shall mean the Contractor and subcontractors and agents of the ContractorJthat
receive, use or have access to protected health information under this Agreement and "Covered
Entity* shall mean the Slate of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services.

(1) Deflnttions.

a. "Breach" shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" In section 164.402 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

b. "Business Associate" has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45. Code
of Federal Regulations.

c. "Covered Entity" has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45.
Code of Federal Regulations.

d. "Designated Record Set" shall have the same meaning as the term "designated record set'
In 45 CFR Section 164.501.

e. "Data AaoreQation" shall have the same meaning as the term "data aggregation" in 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

f. 'Health Care OoeratlGns" shall have the same meaning as the term "health care operations"
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

g. "HITECH Act" means the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health
Act, TItleXIII, Subtitle D. Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of
2009.

h. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health
Information. 45 CFR Parts 160,162 and 164 and amendments thereto.

1. "Indivlduar shall have the same meaning as the term "individual" in 45 CFR Section 160.103
and shall include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45
CFR Section 164.501(g).

j. "Privacy Rule' shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United States
Department of Health and Human Senrices.

k. "Protected Health Information" shall have the same meaning as the term "protected health
information" In 45 CFR Section 160.103, limited to the information created or received ̂
Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity.

3/2014 ExWbiM ConUectOf iniUsIs
HMllh Insurance Portability Act
Business Associate Agreement
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit I

I. "Required bv Law' shall have the same meaning as the term "required by law" In 45 CFR
Section 164.103.

m. "Secretary" shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or
his/her designee.

n. "Security Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
Health Information at 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart C. and amendments thereto.

0. "Unsecured Protected Health Information" means protected health Information that is not
secured by a technology standard that renders protected health information unusable,
unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is developed or endorsed by
a standards developing organization that Is accredited by the American National Standards
Institute.

p. Other Definitions - All terms not othenvise defined herein shall have the meaning
established under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160,162 and 164, as amended from time to time, and the
HITECH

Act.

(2) Business Associate Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information.

a. Business Associate shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health
Information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under
Exhibit A of the Agreement. Further. Business Associate, including but not limited to all
Its directors, officers, employees and agents, shall not use. disclose, maintain or transmit
PHI In any manner that would constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

b. Business Associate may use or disclose PHI;
I. For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate;
It. As required by law, pursuant to the terms set forth In paragraph d. below; or
III. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered

Entity.

c. To the extent Business Associate Is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a
third party, Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i)
reasonable assurances from the third party that such PHI will be held confidentially and
used or further disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which it was
disclosed to the third party; and (ii) an agreement from such third party to notify Business
Associate, in accordance with the HIPAA Privacy. Security, and Breach Notification
Rules of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI, to the extent it has obtairted
knowledge of such breach.

d. The Business Associate shall not. unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to
provide sen/ices under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response to a
request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, without first notifying
Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the disclosure and
to seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the Busing

3/2014 Exhibit I CorAiAdot
Health Insurance Portabilily Act
Business Associate Agreement
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N«w Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit I

c.

Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all
remedies.

e  If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to
be bound by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security
safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall be bound by such additional restrictions and shall not disclose PHI in violation of
such additional restrictions and shall abide by any additional security safeguards.

(3) Obligations and Activities of Buslpess Associate.

a. The Business Associate shall notify the Covered Entity's Privacy Officer Immediately
after the Business Associate becomes aware of any use or disclosure of protected
health information not provided for by the Agreement including breaches of unsecured
protected health Information and/or any security Incident that may have an impact on the
protected health information of the Covered Entity.

b  The Business Associate shall immediately perform a risk assessment when it becomes
aware of any of the above situations. The risk assessment shall include, but not be
limited to; /

0 The nature and extent of the protected health Information involved, including the
types of Identifiers and the likelihood of re-identificatlon;

0 The unauthorized person used tfie protected health information or to whom the
disclosure was made;

0 Whether the protected health information was actually acquired or viewed
0 The extent to which the risk to the protected health information has been

, mitigated.

The Business Associate shall complete the risk assessment within 48 hours of the
breach and Immediately report the findings of the risk assessment In writing to the
Covered Entity.

The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy, Security, and
Breach Notification Rule.

d. Business Associate shall make available all of its internal policies and procedures, books
and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or
received by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for
purposes of determining Covered Entity's compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and
Security Rule.

e. Business Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive, use or have
access to PHI under the Agreement, to agree In writing to adhere to the same
restrictions and conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein, including
the duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided under Section 3 (I). The Covered Entity
shall be considered a direct third party beneficiary of the Contractor's business associate
agreements with Contractor's intended business associates, who will be receiving PHI

3/2014 gxKbil I Conuador Initials
HealiH Insurance Portabllty Act
Business Assodale Agreement
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Now Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

ExhibKI

pursuant to this Agreement, with rights of enforcement and indemnification from such
business associates who shall be governed by standard Paragraph #13 of the standard
contract provisions (P-37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of
protected health information.

f. Within five (6) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall make available during normal business hours at Its offices all
records, books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure
of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine
Business Associate's compliance with the terms of the Agreement.

g. Wthln ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity.
Business Associate shall provide access to PHI In a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet the
requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524. \

h. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHI or a record about an Individual contained In a Designated Record
Set. the Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for
amendment and incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill Its
obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

I. Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to
such disclosures as would t)e required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an
individual for an accountlr»g of disclosures of PHI in accordance writh 45 CFR Section
164.528.

j. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a
request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI. Business Associate shall make available
to Covered Entity such Information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill Its obligations
to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.528.

k. In the event any Individual requests access to. amendment of, or accounting of PHI
directly from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2)
business days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the
responsibility of responding to fonwarded requests. However, if forwarding the
individual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall Instead respond to the individual's request as required by such law and notify -
Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

I. Within ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the
Business Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI
received from, or created or received by the Business Associate In connection with the
Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. If return or
destruction Is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been otherwise agreed to in
the Agreement, Business Associate shall continue to extend the protections of the
Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to those
purposes that make the return or destruction Infeaslble. for so long as Business i

3/2014 ExMbJtl ConlfaOor Intlials
Health insurance Portabilily Act
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Exhibit I

Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, in Its sole discretion, requires that the
Business Associate destroy any or all PHI. the Business Associate shall certify to
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

(4) Qbliaatlons of Covered Entity

a  Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limitatlon(s) in its
Notice of Privacy Practices provided to Individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.520, to the extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate s
use or disclosure of PHI.

b  Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in. or revocation
of permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or
disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section
164.506 or 45 CFR Section 164.508.

c. Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restnctions on the um or
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522.
to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate's use or disclosure of
PHI.

(5) Termination for Cause

In addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and conditions (P-37) of this
Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered
Entity's knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate
Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit I, The Covered Entity may either imn^iately
terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the
alleged breach within a timeframe specified by Covered EnUty. If Covered Entity
determines that neither termination,nor cure is feasible. Covered Entity shall report the
violation to the Secretary.

(6) Miscellaneous

a  Definitions and Rpqulatorv References. All terms used, but not otheiwise defined herem.
shali have the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule a^end^
from time to time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit I. to
a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as
amended.

b  Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as Is
necessary to amend the Agreement, from time to lime as is necessary for Covered
Entity to comply with the changes In the requirements of HIPAA. the Privacy and
Security Rule, and applicable federal and state law.

c  Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that It has no ownership rights
with respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

d. Inleroretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity In the Agreement shall j3e resolved
to permit Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA. the Privacy and Security Rule.

pyhihjj I Contradof Wlials
3^014

Exhibit I

HtaRh Irjsufance Portability Act
^slness^sodale^reemcnt

PafloSofS Oaie.
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Exhibit 1

Segregation. If any term or condition of this Exhibit I or the appiicatlon thereof to any
person(s) or circumstance Is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms or
conditions which can be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the
terms and conditions of this Exhibit I are declared severable.

Survival. Provisions In this Exhibit I regarding the use and disclosure of PHI. return or
destruction of PHI, extensions of the protections of the Agreement In section (3) I. the
defense and Indemnification provisions of section (3) e and Paragraph 13 of the
standard terms and conditions (P-37). shall survive the termination of the Agreement.

IN VS/ITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit I.

lent of Health arxJ yyman Servicesepa

The Name of the Contractor

ature of Au^rlzed Representative Signature of Authorized Representative

Name of Authorized RepresentativeNarjfe of Authorized Reg«sentaWe

TflTe of Autbox^ Representative Title of Authorized Representative

Date

V2014 Exhibit t
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CERTIFICATIOM REQARDING THE FEDERAt- FUNDINQ ACCOUNTABIUTY AND TRAN^PAR^NPY
ACT fFFATAI COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) r^uires prime
Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or after October 1^010. to report
data related to executive compensation and associated first-tier sub-grants of $25,000 or more. If the
initial award is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a tota
$25,000. the award is 6ub)ect to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of tl^
In accordance v«th 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive CtompensaHonlnfo^^^ the
Department of Health and Human Services (OHMS) must report the following information for any
subaward or contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements:
1. Name of entity
2. Amount of award
3. Funding agency ^ ^
4. NAIGS code for contracts / CFDA program number for grants
5. Program source
6. Award title descriptive of the purpose of the furxling action
7. Location of the entity
8. Principle place of performance
9. Unique identifier of the entity (DUNS ff)
10 Total compensation and names of the top five executives if.

10.1. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government. and those
revenues are greater than $25fi^ annually and ccr

10.2. Compensation information Is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in which

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, Public Law ̂ 0®^ and Pubhc
find 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), and further agreesto havefhe?ontractofs^^^^^

Con'i^am to provide needed inforraaiion aa outljred above to tfa NH
Department of Health and Human Services and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal
Financial Accountability and Transparency Act.

Contractor Name:

Name:Date ., .
'  ti.GciAT\^

CU/DKH$/110713

Exhibit J - Certlficalion Regarding ihe Federb1 Funding Conlfaclor IniU
AceouniabiUty And Transparency Ad (FFATA) Compliance
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FORMA

As the Contractor identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions, I certify that the responses to the
below listed questions are true and accurate.

1. The DUNS number for your entity is; ^

2. In your business or organization's preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization
receive (1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts,
loans, grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements; and (2) $25,000,000 or more in annual
gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants. and/or
cooperative agreements?

NO YES

If the answer to #2 above is NO. stop here

If the answer to #2 above is YES. please answer the following;

3. Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives in your
business or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Swurities
Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a). 78o(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of
1986?

NO YES

4.

If the answer to #3 above is YES. stop here

If the answer to #3 above is NO. please answer the following;

The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or
organization are as follows;

Name:,

Name:.

Name;

Name;

Name:

Amount:,

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

CUAV^tS/t I07O
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit K

DHHS INFORMATION SECURITY REQUIREMENTS

1. Conffdenlial Information: In addition to Paragraph #9 of the General Provisions (P-37) for the purpose of ttiis
RFP. the Department's Confidential information includes any and all information owned or managed by the
State of NH - created, received from or on behalf of the Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS)
or accessed In the course of performing contracted services - of which collection, disclosure, protection, and
disposition is governed by state or federal law or regulation. This information Includes, but is not limited to
Personal Health Information (PHI). Personally Identifiable Infonnation (PII).,Federal Tax Information (FTI).
Social Security Numbers (SSN), Payment Card Industry (PCI), and or other sensitive and confidential
information.

2  The vendor will maintain proper security controls to protect Department confidential information coiect^,
processed, managed, and/or stored in the delivery of conUacted services. Minimum expectations Include:
2.1. Maintain policies and procedures to protect Department confidential information throughout the

information litecycie. where applicable, (from creation, transformation, use, storage and secure
destruction) regardless of the media us^ to store the data (i.e.. tape, disk, paper, etc.).

2.2. Maintain appropriate authenticatfon and access controls to contractor systems that collect, transmit, or
store Department confidential information where applicable.

2.3. Encrypt, at a minimum, any Department confidential data stored on portable media, e.g., laptops, USB
drives, as v/ell as when transmitted over public networks like the Internet usir^g current Industry
standards and best practices for strong encryption.

2 4 Ensure proper security mcnrtoring capabilities are In place to detect potential security events that can
impact State of NH systems and/or Department confidential Information for contractor provided systems.

2.5. Provide security awareness and education for its employees, contractors and sub-contractors in support
of protecting Department confidential Information

2 6. Maintain a documented breach nolificallon and incident response process. The vendor will contact the
Department within twenty-four 24 hours to the Department's contract manager, and additional email
addresses provided in this section, of a confidential information breach, computer security Incident, or
suspected breach which affects or includes any Slate of New Hampshire systems that connect to the
State of New Hampshire network.

2.6.1 .'Breach* shall have the same meaning as the term 'Breach* in section 164.402 of Title 45. Code of
Federal Regulations. 'Computer Securlly incident' shall have the same meaning "Computer
Security Incident" in section two (2) of NIST Publication 800-61. Computer Security Incident
Handling Guide, National Institute of Standards and Technology. U.S. Department of Commerce.

Breach notifications will be sent to the following email addresses:

2.6.1.1. DHHSChieflnfofTnattonQfticef@dhhs.nh.QOV

2.6.1.2. DHHSInfQrmationSecurilvQffice@dhhs.nh.Qov

2.7. If the vendor will maintain any Confidential Information on Its systems (or its sub-contractor systems), the
vendor will maintain a documented process for securely disposing of such data upon request or contract
tennlnation: and will obtain written certification for any State of New Hampshire data destroyed by the
vendor or any subcontractors as a part of ongoing, emergency, and or disaster recovery operations.
When no longer in use, electronic media containing State of New Hampshire data shall be rendered
unrecoverable via a secure wipe program in accordance with Industry-accepted standards for secure
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit K

or otherwise physically destroying the media (for example, degaussing). The vencJor wiH
document and certify in writing at time of the data destruction, and will provide written certification to the
Department upon request. The written certification will Include all details necessary to demonstrate data
has been properly destroyed and validated. Where applicable, regulatory and professiwral standards for
retention requirements will be jointly evaluated by the State and vendor prior to destruction.

2 8. If the verKlor will be sub-contracting any core functions of the engagement supporting the services for
State of New Hampshire, the vendor will maintain a program of an internal process or procewes that
defines specific security expectations, and monitoring compliance to security requirements that at a
minimum match those for the vendor, including breach notification requirements.

3  The vendor will work with the Department to sign and comply with all applicable State of New Harnpsh^e ̂
Department system access and authorization policies and procedures, systems
use agreements as part of obtaining and maintaining access to any Department
be completed and signed by the vendor and any applicable sub-contractors prior to system access being
authorized.

4. If the Department determines the vendor is a Business Associate pursuant to 45 CFR 160.103, the vendor will
work with the Department to sign and execute a HlPAA Business Associate Agreement (8AA) with theDepartment and is responsible for maintaining compliance with the agreement.

5  The vendor will work with the Department at its request to complete a survey. The purpose of the survey «to
enable the Department and vendor to nwnilor for any changes in nsKs. threats, and ^
occur over the life of the vendor engagement. The survey will be completed annually, or an alternate time
frame at the Departments discretion with agreement by the vendor, or the Departrnenl rn^
survey be completed when the scope of the engagement between the Department and the vendrx changes.
The vendor wiU not store. ktKwingly or unknowingly, any Slate of New Hampshre or
offshore or outside the boundaries of the United States unless prior express wntten consent is obtained from
the appropriate authorized data owner or leadership member withm the Department.
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